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PRESIDENT’S FOREWORD 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Dear Members 
 
On behalf of the Management Committee, it gives me great pleasure to welcome you to Panaga Club 
and the Kuala Belait Boat Club (KBBC). 
 
Introduction 
 
The Panaga Club (including Kuala Belait Boat Club) provides fantastic facilities for all members to 
undertake a wide range of activities to enhance their lives in Brunei.  I would like to welcome all 
new members in 2016/2017 and hope you will enjoy the Club facilities and services, and I 
encourage you to play an active role in one of the many Section Committees – the success of the 
Club lies with our own enthusiasm and ownership to make it a great place to be. 
 
Health Safety and Security 
 
Health, Safety, Security and Environment are top priorities for all activities in the Club.  Staffs, Pros 
and Management Committee do their best to ensure the health, safety and security of the premises 
and services for all members whilst also seeking ways to improve our environmental footprint. 
 
A total of 24 incidents and near-misses including fire were reported during 2016, which is 
significantly up from the 12 reported in 2015 and 19 in 2014; the Club’s management will continue 
to motivate a reporting culture. 
 
We had incidents related to:  missing item (1), sports injury (3 adults and 2 children), first aid case 
(3), false alarm (3), equipment failure (1), car accident (3), boat accident (1), trespassing at the golf 
course (4) / Beach Shelter (1), fire (1) and crocodile sighting (1). 
 
All incidents are logged, actions discussed and follow up is tracked in relevant management forum.  
 
The Club will continue to seek further ways to improve the safety and security of the premises, 
supported by BSP-HSE functions, the Panaga Health Centre and the Government emergency 
services (Bomba, Ambulance, and Police).   BSP also conducted Seat Belt Campaign at Panaga Club 
in October 2016. 
 
The Club HSSE Focal Point (observed by BSP HSE/HRL Personnel) conducted fire drills at Panaga 
Club including on Golf Course and KBBC with gradually good response from Club members. 
 
The Panaga Club Security Guards are reduced from four guards per shift to two guards per shift 
while KBBC remains the same under the new BSP Security Contractor (DAIMON) effective 1 August 
2016. 
 
The Club has published a copy of the Swimming Pool Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) on Club 
Website for members’ reference. 
 
We would like to call on all members to help us by telling us about any unsafe situations so we can 
take appropriate actions before it escalates. 
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PRESIDENT’S FOREWORD (cont’d) 
 
 
Projects and Maintenance 
 
A number of significant projects at Panaga Club commenced and continued in 2016, all aimed at 
improving and maintaining the facilities for the benefit of the members. 
 
In April 2016, the Club together with BSP colleagues and contractors have experienced difficulty in 
rectify the problem of the cable Live Voltage (LV) Board at the Boat Compound which has aged and 
rotted.  This has caused short circuit resulting in power failure which so happen to be that the Pump 
House for the swimming pools share the same source affected the running of swimming pool system 
and also other areas such as he Beach Shelter, Boat Compound, back Playground and back car park, 
including all street and floodlights at the back road.  BSRC Management has thoughtfully agreed to 
let our Club members to use their swimming pool facilities during the swimming pool closure 
period. 
 
The Club engaged two Pool Consultants from Australia in September 2016 to study the Club 
swimming pool system to assist the Club to cut down on chemical consumption due to cost, and to 
recommend best practice for the maintenance of the pool and system. Findings have been shared 
and presented with trainings of the Club Maintenance and Pool Team.  The Pool Consultants shared 
their recommendations and it involves a lot of improvement plans set out until the year 2030.  The 
relevant Club departments have also done immediate things like doing housekeeping to the pump 
house, removing old items that have never been written off.  Next immediate plan is for the 
rectification of backwash valves and to clean out the backwash tank and to replace valves on the 
outlet piping inside the pump house to stop leaks from being prolonged.  
 
Infrastructure and Maintenance Developments: 
 
Panaga Club: 

1) Construction of Golf Hole 16 safety fencing 
2) Construction of new Golf buggy garage at Driving Range 
3) Refurbishment of Club playground equipment complete with new rubber flooring including 

undercoating and painting (anti rust) of new slides 
4) Dismantle and removal of Serikandi’s kitchen walk-in freezer; not working  
5) Refurbishment of Beach Shelter; unsafe state 
6) Refurbishment of Golf Course Maintenance Workshop washing bay using treated timber 
7) Repair of main Clubhouse roof; badly leaking 
8) Repair of Golf Female toilet near Poolside Cafeteria; after burnt 
9) Repair of Lawn Bowl fences; badly rotten 
10) Replacement of airconditioning units in Arts & Craft room, Library room, MPH Dance Hall, 

Pelangi room, Teratai Restaurant and Serikandi Bulkstore/main Club telephone system 
room in basement; not functioning 
 

KBBC: 
1. Conversion of ex-Catering Office into Prayer room 
2. Remedial leaking and re-tiling work on Splash Pool 
3. Repair of Chart room wooden floor. 
4. Repair/Replacement of balcony wooden fences, ground floor pillar, ceilings and main 

staircase steps  
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PRESIDENT’S FOREWORD (cont’d) 
 
 
Activities and Events 
 
Many important events continued to again grace the calendar at Panaga Club and KBBC organized 
by the Sections and their Committees.  These events involve a large number of volunteers who give 
their time freely for the benefit of the community.  These events contribute greatly to life in Panaga 
as we know it.  The Football Section and Omani Community Section have ceased due to lack of 
volunteers.  The Club membership compared in 2015 has decreased by 8% in 2016.   
 
People 
 
The Panaga Club/KBBC Staff and Professionals including Panaga Club Caterers – Serikandi and 
Mauri, KBBC Caterer – SNS, Housekeeping - ISS and Golf Shop & Driving Range Management – SM 
Tan provide a tremendous service to all Sections and members. 
 
In view of increasing efficiency and improving the value proposition to members and staff, the Club 
has extended and or renewed the duration of contracts with Club Professionals and service 
providers and will continue to do so to maximize the benefit to the Club operations and services. 
 
We welcome our new Club Staff and Professional: Tennis Coach, Nic Danuel A Fernandez; Office 
Assistant, Hafizah binti Suhaidi; Maintenance Assistant cum MPH Club Attendants, Abdul Hafiz bin 
Abd Latif and Muhammad Yussuf bin Mohammad, Secondary Dance Instructor, Rufo Nilo Jr L Maltu 
and Golf Starter, Mohammad Ishak bin Bujang Sabtu. 
 
A big Thank You & Congratulation to Tan Ah Nam, Maintenance Assistant who retired in April 2016 
after 42 years service with Panaga Club. 
 
We would like to congratulate and thank the following long-service Staff who celebrated their 
emblem at Panaga Club in 2016; Zelani bin Haji Hassan, KBBC Senior Boatman (30 years), Christina 
Menyak ak Achaw, MPH Sports Booking Clerk cum Warden (30 years), Hajjah Jainah binti Haji 
Majid, Senior Administrative Assistant (25 years) and Yong Pui Chuen, Accountant Assistant (25 
years) and Razali bin Haji Allias, Venue Booking Administrator (10 years). 
 
A special and great thanks go to all who have participated over the past year in the success of the 
Club.  I would like to in particular thank Adam Thorne, Club Treasurer and Corinna Laukens, Health 
& Fitness Member, who have contributed tremendously to the overall success of the club. 
 
I would also like to welcome our new Club Management Committee:  Treasurer - BSP, Ramon van 
Dijk; Treasurer – Panaga Club, Carien Maclaine Pont and Health & Fitness Member, Keri van den 
Heuvel. 
 
My special thanks also go to the Accounts, Administration, Maintenance, Project and Housekeeping, 
Golf and KBBC Boatman Departments for their excellent performance for 2016. 
 
I look forward to working with all of you during 2017 to continue and maintain the Club at the 
highest standards in every respect! 
 
 
BJORN WILHELMSEN MELAA 
CLUB PRESIDENT 
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TREASURERS’ REPORT 2016 

 
 

 

 
 
OVERALL FINANCIAL RESULT 2016 
 
In 2016 the Panaga Club financial performance was better than expected, though with an overall 
operating loss of BND 96k. Compared to 2015, a reduction in membership (-8%, the result of a 
downward trend in BSP expatriate employees), was the biggest driver of a reduction in revenues  
(-13%). 
 
BSP continued to be a major financial benefactor and covered 43% of total club operating costs.  In 
light of BSP funding constraints and a steady decline in our member base at the club, for 2016 we 
pursued minimal run and maintain expenditure and selective investment only.  The combination of 
funding and revenue pressures meant that we needed to closely examine both cash inflows and 
outflows to maintain the club’s financial strength for the future.  
 
A few key activities that were undertaken were the review and revision of our pool maintenance 
processes which is expected to save us about $20k per year, and the refurbishment of the Beach 
Shelter.  Some activities were deferred to 2017 including refurbishment of one tennis court, 
replacement of the Jungle House playground, and replacement of gratings around the pools. 
 
2017 is expected to be a challenging year in financial terms and a variety of measures are being 
taken to mitigate these challenges.  The member fees have been raised slightly, contracting and 
procurement activities are being more rigorously scrutinized and continued review internally on 
where we can reduce costs are all contributing to reducing our cost base.  In making investment 
decisions we Club are also planning to put increased emphasis on ensuring that they represent good 
long-term value.  A full-time Contracting & Procurement staff member has been hired to help 
manage these processes. 
 
The financial health of the sections was stable, with a small increase in their Funds (+5%). 
Commensurate with the financial loss over 2016, the Club’s accumulated funds declined to $965k.  
BSP’s financial support for Panaga Club in 2016 is included in the Annual Report but doesn’t form 
part of the Club’s Book of Accounts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RAMON VAN DIJK           CARIEN MACLAINE PONT 
TREASURER - BSP    TREASURER – PANAGA CLUB 
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ACCOUNTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016 
 

 

UNAUDITED 

 

PANAGA CLUB

(A society registered in Brunei Darussalam)

BALANCE SHEET

31 DECEMBER 2016

 Audited

Notes 2016 2015

B$ B$

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and bank 4 1,127,137 1,233,782

Fixed Deposit 711,465 709,808

Accounts Receivables 5 576,256 697,755

Other Receivables  44,740 53,366

Total assets 2,459,598 2,694,711

LIABILITIES AND ACCUMULATED FUNDS

Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payables 97,457 84,710

Other Payables 6 488,920 686,008

Section funds 7 907,732 861,595

Total current liabilities 1,494,109 1,632,313

Accumulated Funds:

Accumulated funds brought forward 1,062,398 922,604

Surplus/(Deficit) for the financial year (96,909) 139,794

965,489 1,062,398

Total Liabilities & Accumulated Funds  2,459,598 2,694,711

ON BEHALF OF THE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

PRESIDENT TREASURER

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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ACCOUNTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016 
 

 

UNAUDITED 

 
 

 

PANAGA CLUB

( A society registered in Brunei Darussalam)

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Audited

2016 2015

B$ B$

INCOME

Members' Subscriptions 1,035,407 1,208,645

Rental Income 150,375 138,300

Commission from caterers 18,343 30,059

Income from room hire 18,100 24,575

Total Income 1,222,225 1,401,579

OTHER INCOME

Miscellaneous Income 11,234 17,240

Interest Income 1,298 5,589

Total Other Income 12,533 22,829

EXPENDITURE

Staff costs 1,044,803 774,469

General Club expenses 279,212 434,597

General members expenses 4,826 18,548

Section expenses 57,000

Asset Acquisition 2,825 0

Total Expenditure 1,331,666 1,284,614

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (96,909) 139,794

 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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ACCOUNTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016 
 

 

UNAUDITED 

 
 
 
 

Panaga Club

(A society registered in Brunei Darussalam)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Audited

2016  2015

B$ B$

Cash flow from operating activities

Surplus/(deficit) for the year (96,909) 139,794

Adjustments for:

Interest Income (1,298) (5,589)

Surplus (deficit) before working capital changes (98,207) 134,205

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts Receivables 121,498 264,604

Other Receivables 8,626 13,763

Accounts Payables 12,747 (38,089)

Other Payables (197,088) (124,302)

Sections Funds 46,136 14,114

Cash generated from operation (106,288) 264,295

Interest Income 1,298 5,589

Cash generated (used) from operating activities (104,990) 269,884

Increase (decrease) in cash in the year (104,990) 269,884

Cash at the beginning of the financial year 1,943,590 1,673,706

Cash at the end of the financial year 1,838,600 1,943,590
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ACCOUNTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

PANAGA CLUB

(A society registered in Brunei Darussalam)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2016

1 GENERAL

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE - All income and expenditure are taken up on accrual basis.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  - The Club operates defined contribution plans regulated and managed by the 

Government of Brunei Darussalam, which applies to all local employees. The contributions to Employees' 

retirement benefit fund and Employees' saving fund ("TAP and SCP") are charged to Income and Expenditure 

statement in the period to which the contribution relate.

DONATED SERVICES - The work of the Club is dependent on the help of volunteers and members. Since 

these services are not normally purchased by the Club and because of the difficulty of determining their fair 

value, donated services are not reflected in these financial statement.

The Club being a Brunei Shell staff Club; is under the control of Brunei Shell Petroleum Company Sdn Bhd 

("BSP"), a company incorporated in Brunei Darussalam. Related party in these financial statements refers to 

BSP.

The outstanding balances due from BSP are unsecured, interest free and without fixed repayment terms.

The principal activities of Panaga Club are to provide social,sporting and cultural activities for the 

employees of Brunei Shell Petroleum Company Sdn Bhd ("BSP") including their family members and its 

related companies, its retirees, government and contractor's employees, and its management committee 

members.

Income represents members' subscriptions, rental income, income from room hire and commission from 

caterers.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical 

cost convention, with the accounting policies of Panaga Club, and the provision pf Societies Order 2005 and 

are expressed in Brunei Darussalam Dollars.

FIXED ASSETS - All items of asset nature are recognised in income and expenditure statement upon 

acquisition.



14 

ACCOUNTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016 
 
 

 
 
 

PANAGA CLUB

(A society registered in Brunei Darussalam)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2016

4 CASH 2016 2015

$ $

Cash in bank 1,122,232 1,228,259

Petty Cash 2,500 2,500

Cash on Hand 2,405 3,023

1,127,137 1,233,782

5 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 2016 2015

$ $

Due from related party (note 3) 485,367 590,821

Due from other members 90,889 106,934

576,256 697,755

6 OTHER PAYABLES 2016 2015

$ $

Members' deposits 381,622 435,881

Other payables and accruals 107,298 250,127

488,920 686,008

7 SECTION FUNDS 2016 2015

 

Section funds represent funds held by the club on behalf of 

the various sections of the club. The control of these funds 

rests with the respective sections. 907,732  861,595

 

8 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 2016 2015

The maximum estimated amount the company could 

become liable to for all foreign workers engaged by the 

Club under Labour Guarantee. This is being hold in lieu as 

Fixed Deposit with BIBD. 41,100 41,100
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ACCOUNTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix

Panaga Club

Budget/Actual Comparison for Income & Expenditure Statement

2017

Account Description Actual Plan Plan

B$ B$ B$

General Income    

4110/1 Members' subscriptions 1,035,407 1,002,323 970,000

4112 Income from room hire 18,100 30,000 18,000

4131 Commission from caterers 18,343 20,000 20,000

4132 Rental Fee - Restaurant Operators 150,375 138,300 150,000

4140 Interest on fixed deposits 1,298 2,000 9,000

4170 Special members' entrance fees 4,500 1,500 4,500

4160 Miscellaneous income 6,734 17,000 6,000

4161 Facility Rental/Usage Fee 5,000

4185 Proceeds from asset disposal 0 0 0

Total Income 1,234,758 1,211,123 1,182,500

Staff Costs  

5111 Salary 559,533 550,786 559,157

5112 Overtime 123 0 0

5113 Bonuses/Leave (including leaves sell) 180,760 137,696 169,404

5131 TAP/SCP contribution 43,505 42,728 44,238

5132 Retirement benefit fund contribution 62,304 79,032 62,375

5151 Staff party 6,585 6,600 4,000

5135 Uniforms 4,288 5,000 4,101

5137 HLP-Provisions 0 0 0

5133 Education allowance 18,380 18,920 9,900

5152/62 Staff training & other expenses 63,762 31,921 25,000

5134/6 Housing/petrol allowances 105,563 104,636 108,824

1,044,803 977,319 987,000

2016
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ACCOUNTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix

Panaga Club

Budget/Actual Comparison for Income & Expenditure Statement

2017

Account Description Actual Plan Plan

B$ B$ B$

General Club Expenses

5211 Housekeeping Services and Cleaning materials 82,546 90,000 85,000

5232 Laundry 1,485 2,000 1,500

5215 Club materials (Festive Decorations) 0 200 200

5233 Bank charges 2,900 2,000 3,000

5213 Club Movables 7,135 15,000 10,000

5220 Club maintenance 66,060 62,243 50,000

5401 Club maintenance - pool 26,890 40,000 15,000

5230 Telephone & fax charges 3,571 4,000 3,500

5236 Insurance 24,980 30,000 20,000

5235 Stationery/Postage 8,427 7,500

5237 Printing 5,124 5,000

5238 Van hire 399 500 500

5285 IT Supports 10,227 18,000 10,000

5290 Opex Provision - Division/Section 19,265 20,000 0

5282 Club IT Equipment/Maintenance 6,636 20,000 4,000

5286 Website Management Cost 0 2,000 2,000

5239 Miscellaneous Expenses (Including bottled water) 1,666 2,000 2,000

5321 Audit Fee 8,000 8,000 0

5161 Medical Expenses (1st Aid Kit supplies) 3,902 5,500 2,000

Contingency Allowance 0 0

279,212 333,943 213,900

2016

5,200
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ACCOUNTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix

Panaga Club

Budget/Actual Comparison for Income & Expenditure Statement

2017

Account Description Actual Plan Plan

B$ B$ B$

General Members Expenses

5320/5212 Newspapers/Advetisement 1,535 4,200 1,500

5325 Government Entertainment Licences 172 500 100

5350 Management Committee 3,115 10,000 3,000

4,821 14,700 4,600

5241 Bad/doubtful debts provision

5241 Bad debts written off 5 2,000 500

5265 Asset Acquisition - Club 2,825 0 110,000

5265 Asset Acquisition - Sections

5266 Asset Acquisition - KBBC

2,825 0 110,000

Total Expenditure 1,331,666 1,327,962  1,316,000

 

Operating Surplus/(Deficit) for the year (96,909) (116,839) (133,500)

2016
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ACCOUNTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Panaga Club

Club Operation Cost 2016 (BSP & Club Expenditures)

2017

Actual Plan Plan

Panaga Club B$ B$ B$

Total Income 1,234,758 1,211,123 1,182,500

Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year (96,909) (116,839) (133,500)

Total Club Expenditure 1,331,666 1,327,962 1,316,000

BSP HRF Facility Operation Cost

Panaga Club Operating Cost 525,725 636,024 399,901

KBBC Operating Cost (4,317) 86,009 48,386

Golf Maintenance 493,685 589,630 570,337

Total BSP Facility Operation Cost 1,015,094 1,927,867 1,018,624

Total Club Operating Costs 2,346,760 3,243,867 2,334,624

2016
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ACCOUNTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016 
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Panaga Club Membership Movements 

Full

Associate

Garrison

Year            Average Membership

Year Full Associate Garrison

2000 612 388 49 1,049

2001 615 391 77 1,083

2002 629 416 88 1,133

2003 630 425 111 1,166

2004 631 388 132 1,151

2005 615 375 127 1,117

2006 610 371 130 1,111

2007 624 376 130 1,130

2008 624 376 130 1,130

2009 709 379 127 1,215

2010 670 361 96 1,127

2011 656 363 100 1,119

2012 663 392 103 1,158

2013 693 316 120 1,129

2014 728 340 105 1,173

2015 666 288 99 1,053

2016 663 268 69 1,000

* Total excludes 48 Honorary Members

Total *
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FOOD & BEVERAGES (F&B) SECTION 
 
 
General Updates 
 
1) A new contract is in place with the existing caterer Serikandi offering a better revenue for the Club. 
 
2) Several improvements have been identified within the kitchen area of Serikandi to serve the members 

better. 
 
3) New menus have been introduced by Serikandi over the year including new Indian breakfast options. 

 
4) Café Mauri introduced new menus and different portion options which was welcomed by the members. 
 
5) Café Mauri offers a wide selection of menu to choose from and serves authentic Italian cuisine. 
 
6) The service quality of the two caterers has been good based on the feedback from the members. 
 
7) A new catering contract has also been put in place in KBBC. 
 
8) Continuous improvements in the caterers’ area based on routine maintenance and feedback from the 

members over the year. 
 
 
We take this opportunity to thank all those who helped us in the smooth running of the F&B Section and as 
always the best ideas and requirements come from the users of the facilities which in this case is you all the 
members.   
  
We welcome any suggestions or improvements you may want to see in this section which can be considered 
and implemented as appropriate. 
 
 
F&B Member 
Chandrasekar Subramaniam 
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CULTURE DIVISION 
 
 
POSITION NAME 

Culture Member Carolyn Brien 

 
 
The Culture Division consists of: 
 

 Arts & Crafts Section 
 Library Section 
 Panaga Natural History Society (P.N.H.S.) 
 Panaga Photographic Society (P.P.S.) 

 
 
Arts & Crafts Section – Kim Fudge 
 

 Extended opening hours 

 Children’s activities 

 Workshops. 

 
Library Section – Gayle Larke (2016) / Becca Bethall 
 

 Membership 271 families 

 Magazines added to the collection 

 Gallery in the entrance 

 Children’s activities and competitions 

 Stocktake 

 DOE, scouts and rainbows 

 Insurance 

 Volunteers 

 Storeroom improvements. 

 
Panaga Natural History Society (PNHS) – Steve Brown 
 

 Website 

 Camera Traps 

 Census 

 Presentations – Guest Speakers 

 Field Trips 

 F/B Page. 

 
Panaga Photographic Society (PPS) – Tina Graham 
 

 36 Members 

 Discussion group focusing on techniques, editing and peer review 

 Tasek Merimbun 

 Teresa Waterfall 

 Photography display in the library. 
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Arts & Crafts Section 
 
 
Our group of creative minds meets on scheduled days in the spacious and bright Arts and Crafts studio, 
located upstairs at the Panaga Club.  The room overlooks both the golf course and the coast and is 
comfortable, light, airy, and fully equipped for most art or craft activities.  The group is run by club members 
with an interest in the arts who meet regularly to share ideas and support each other.  Our ethos is of 
inclusion whether or not you have a specific skill or expertise or simply desire to learn. 
 
Our knowledge and talents are shared amongst group members so there is always something new to learn or 
pass on and courses are run on a regular basis to introduce new skills.  We provide support for crafters but 
also lend a welcoming environment for newcomers who want to meet new people and forge friendships. 
 
We have regular hours where our members focus on sewing and scrapbooking/paper craft.  We use our funds 
from memberships to keep up to date on our vast array of crafting tools, machines, and supplies, while our 
small leadership committee relies completely on volunteer labor. 
 
In 2016, we held a few workshops in the Arts and Crafts studio.  These included an open house to showcase 
new items and give tutorials on how to use them, calligraphy workshop, a card making workshop, and a 
children’s holiday card making workshop. 
 
Membership has declined a little, as with all of Panaga Club.  However, we still had 36 members at the end of 
2016.   
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Valerie Meier and Kimberly Fudge 

Secretary Snehal Tiwari and JileenBilsland 

Treasurer Christine Chase 

General Members Marion Rego 
Helen Speirs 
Susan Tough 
Gabriela Rogers 

 
 
In 2017, we are planning more courses, including batik painting, acrylic painting, scrapbook workshop, and a 
sewing workshop.  We hope that with these courses, we bring new members into the Arts and Crafts studio 
and have some new ideas for the future. 
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Library Section 
 
 
Panaga Club Library serves its members through the lending of a wide range of children’s and adults’ fiction 
and non-fiction books, DVDs and audio books, in both English and Dutch. 
 
Highlights of the Year 
 
*  The library continues to use the corridor as a display area in order to support and raise awareness of 

local artists or groups 
*  The library now has insurance cover for the books/DVDs in case of fire/damage 
* Two reading tents have been purchased by the library - one for each of the children’s areas 
*  The response to quizzes by the children has improved dramatically and has created a lot of interest so it 

has been decided to increase them 
*  New shelving for the children’s reference area has been purchased which will be at a lower level so access 

to the books will be easier. 
*  A magazine section has been introduced to the library with a variety of topics in both English and Dutch 

language 
*  Two casual chairs and a coffee table have been purchased for adult readers wanting to sit and peruse 

magazines 
*  Job descriptions for Committee roles are now complete and are updated each time a member is replaced 
*  The rolling 2 year program of stock takes has continued to be applied. 2017 will be the second year of the 

2 year program so by the end of the year all the library stock will have been reviewed and old, damaged 
and out of date books will have been removed from the shelves. 

 
Membership 
 
In January of 2016, the library had 297 members, and by December of 2016 the membership stood at 271 
members which reflects the reduction in Club members generally.  As our members subscribe as a family, not 
as individuals, this number reflects the number of families who currently have membership and not the 
number of actual members.  The cost for a family subscription remains at five dollars per month. 
 
Circulation 
 
In 2016 the library has checked out 11,651 items to its members, the spread of which was: 
 
• 57% English Adult 
• 12% English Adult 
• 14% DVD 
• 12% Dutch child 
• 3% Dutch adult 
• 1% audio 
• 1% magazines 
 
Library Committee 
 
This year, yet again, the committee members have made a huge effort to improve the library and make it more 
attractive.  There has been a large turnover in Committee members but due to the commitment of the 
individual members and job descriptions all handovers have been achieved with full training and support.  
 
The current positions are: 
 
* Administrator & Chair 
* Dutch Librarians x 2 
* DVD Librarian 
* English Librarian x 2 
* Rota & Training 
* Secretary & Membership 
* Treasurer 
 
Committee members invest an enormous amount of their time in order to ensure that their section of the 
library, and the library as a whole, runs smoothly.  In addition they attend monthly meetings to deal with 
issues arising from organising such a large membership and also to generate new ideas and projects. 
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Library Section (cont’d) 
 
 
Library Volunteers 
 
The library is run entirely by volunteers, and it is thanks to the dedication of these people that the library is 
able to open six days a week for between one and four hours each day.  Each new librarian receives an initial 
training session before being placed with an experienced volunteer in order to learn on the job. The 
Committee continues to try to develop its support for the large numbers of volunteers.  We have undertaken 
the training of volunteers on a regular basis with smaller numbers involved, in order to promote confidence 
and ensure a better understanding of what is required.  In addition Volunteer Workshops have taken place 
throughout the year to provide skills refreshers. Finally, in order to show appreciation of our volunteers, we 
held the annual Volunteer Appreciation Dinner in Panaga in May, which was well attended and enjoyed. 
 
Future Goals and Challenges 
 
In the coming year the Library Committee hopes to; 
 
*  Continue to recruit volunteers so that an effective service for our members is provided 
*  Continue to rejuvenate the library and make it more attractive for our members.  Key pointers will be the 

installation of more low level children’s shelving 
*  Continue the stock take rota to ensure that the stock is in good condition and relevant to our members 
*  Refurbish the Store Room to make it more viable as effective storage 
*  The Library’s biggest single challenge is the lack of space. An extension appears, at the moment, to be 

infeasible, so we will continue to re-organisation shelving, books etc try to utilise the space as well as 
possible. 

 
 
Larke Gayle 
Panaga Club Library Chairperson (outgoing) 
 
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson  Larke Gayle 

Secretary Rennie Natalia 

Treasurer Van Der ES Johanna 

Administrator Carolyn Gay Brien 

Dutch Librarian Van Der ES Johanna 

Dutch Librarians Susanne Grauwmans 

DVD Librarian Christine Miriam Chase 

English Adult  Librarian Bethell Rebecca 

English Children Librarian Carolyn Gay Brien 

Membership Larke Gayle 

Rota & Training Hanim Abd Ghaffur  
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Panaga Natural History Society (P.N.H.S.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The PNHS is a diverse group of people brought together by a common interest in and care for nature.  

 
Our goals are  

 to promote awareness for the many forms of nature one can enjoy locally and to share our 
experience among the Panaga community 

 to raise the environmental awareness and commitment of the community 
 

To do this, we organise  

 talks and presentations by PNHS members or invited visiting speakers 

 walks and excursions  

 environmental awareness activities  
 

We have an assortment of equipment, books and reference material, and run a website that hosts reports, 
general information and articles of interest. Committee members also act as custodians for a series of 
collections such as photographs of butterflies, local snakes and birds, seed pods, sea shells, and notes from 
walks and trails. The access to these is available, on request, to all PNHS members.  PNHS membership is free. 
 
The PNHS has kept an active Animal Sighting list since 1987. 
 
The PNHS produces an electronic newsletter distributed to the members’ mailing list. 
 
1) Ongoing Activities in 2016 
 

 
Present Activities 

 

 
General Admin & Organisation of Activities Vanessa 

 Walks and Hiking Focal Point Steve 

 Finances Sue/Dean 

 Monthly Newsletter Vanessa 

 
PNHS website updates Dave 

 
Water bird Census Shirley/Vanessa 

 Wildlife Spotting using Camera Traps Steve/Dean 

 Resolve Seashore life books issue Steve 

 PHNS sponsored talks Committee 
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Panaga Natural History Society (P.N.H.S.) (cont’d) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Listing of ideas for Activities which could be carried out by interested members under the umbrella of 
the PNHS 
 

 Planting of Fruiting Trees for Hornbills 

 Building & Care Taking of Nest Boxes for Hornbills 

 Panaga Vegetation Management 

 Setting up a PNHS Facebook Page 

 Boat trip for PNHS committee 
 Climb highest point in Brunei 
 David has greatly improved the accessibility of information on the PNHS website 
 PNHS wishes to increase involvement with the Panaga Photographic Society 
 Books, such as the ‘Seashore Life’ series, still need to be reprinted 
 PNHS to arrange walks, presentations and camera trapping for 2017 
 Sponsor presentation on Hornbills’ by Anna Coyajee 
 Camera trapping of hornbill nests and other wildlife hotspots  
 Updating and printing ‘Seashore Life’ book series 
 Further sales of posters and books to public 
 Project to improve habitat for silverleaf monkeys and other wildlife (Lisa): 

- Advice on appropriate vegetation to plant in gardens, 
- Planting trees to provide a canopy across roads, allowing safe passage of silverleaf.  

 Hornbill census, and maintenance of manmade nest sites on camp (Anna) 
 Beachcombing and identification of discoveries with children 
 Scheduled jungle walks, such as to Teraja Falls, Labi Road logging tracks 
 Providing online information, with links, about interesting local sites, such as Tasek Merimbun, Sungai 

Liang Recreation Park, and Kuala Balai Road 
 Riverboat tour 
 Possible field trip to learn about stingless bee honey production 
 Asian Waterbird Census, and other wildlife watching excursions, using spotting scopes, beginning with 

Sungai Seria 
 Macaque monkey behaviour survey 
 Awareness and education project relating to otters and their safety 
 Online listing of useful contact details relating to wildlife events, such as crocodile and snake 

sightings/alerts 
 Building a relationship with Panaga School: 

- Encouraging pupils to contribute to child-friendly information on the site 
- Wildlife talks for children  
- Representation at Science Fair  

 Increasing public awareness of wildlife poaching and steps to deter it 
 Possible involvement with Bruneian organisations, such as Onestop Brunei/Borneo, BruWILD, to help 

educate the general public about local wildlife and the environment 
 Increased interaction with Jungle Dave, and activities to support the Biodiversity Project 
 Development and administration of a Facebook group for PNHS, allowing real-time sharing of 

information. Possible synergies with hashing and bike riding groups 
 Presentations on topics of interest. Possibilities include Kinabatangan River trip, and Hornbills, by Anna, 

Kalimantan trip by Carolyn Stennard, air pollution information by Jeremy, wildlife for children, Panaga 
wildlife by Hans Dols, insects (Ruth), Gurkha jungle survival talk, Jungle Dave and Biodiversity Project 

 Informal discussion evenings to discuss ideas and plan excursions 
 Potentially opening up PNHS library to borrowers 
 Regular PNHS meetings at two-month intervals to update and discuss projects. 
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Panaga Natural History Society (P.N.H.S.) (cont’d) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2) 2016 Events 
 

Walks are being organized privately by PNHS members, not under Panaga Club framework.  More 
experienced members go on outings frequently and most often are willing to take along interested people.  
Some members are seasoned birdwatchers, other general wildlife observers participated in the 2016 
Waterbird census this year. 
 
Official events that the PNHS organized were:  

 A presentation to the Panaga Cub Scouts by Sue Sharpe 

 A presentation on the history of Seria oil fields by Bong Poh Yuk 

 A presentation on birds of Borneo by Kolbjoern 

 A presentation on monkeys by Sue Sharpe 

 A presentation on discovering unexpected nature by Jungle Dave 

 A presentation on sea life dangers by British Garrison 

 PNHS representation at Panaga School Science Fair 
 

2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION / SPECIFIC INTEREST NAME 

Chairperson Steve Brown 

Secretary Vanessa Burton 

Treasurer Dean Golding 

Waterbird Census Shirley Hee Kui Leng 

 
2017 Committee: 
 

POSITION / SPECIFIC INTEREST NAME 

Chairperson Steve Brown 

Secretary/Newsletter Vanessa Burton 

Treasurer Dean Golding 

Honorary Chairman / HoB, Travel Hans Dols 

 
 

Email: PNHS.Brunei@gmail.com 
 
Website: www.bsp.com.bn/panagaclub/pnhs/ 
 
 

mailto:PNHS.Brunei@gmail.com
http://www.bsp.com.bn/panagaclub/pnhs/
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Panaga Photographic Society (P.P.S.) 
 
 
Summary 
 

 Panaga Photography Section: Tina Graham 
 36 Members at December 2016 
 PPS conducted two field trips in 2016 
 Monthly discussion group format to continue with added Photo Editing presentations and field trips 

planned for 2017. 
 

Panaga Photography Society (PPS): Tina Graham 
 
The Panaga Photography Society aims to offer opportunities for members to learn and improve photography 
skills by being part of an active group.  
 
2016 Activities 
 

 April 2016 – Tasek Merimbun field trip was attended by 11 members.  Members arrived early to 
capture the sunrise over the lake.  A walk along the walkway provided excellent opportunities to 
capture landscapes as well as some wildlife.   
 

 June/July 2016 - Photo exhibition of members’ work in the Library 

 
  October 2016 – Teraja Waterfalls trip was attended by 5 members.  

 
Committee 2016 
 
Chairperson : Tina Graham (Oct 2016 – Mar 2017);  
   Lisa Poore (Dec 2015 – Oct 2016) 
 
Treasurer : Mark Russell (Oct 2016 – Mar 2017);  
   Dean Mullin (Dec 2015 – Oct 2016) 
 
General Member : Ruben Bolasing (Oct 2016 – Mar 2017);  
   Tina Graham (Jan 2016 – Oct 2016) 
 
Plans for the coming year 
 
In 2017, PPS is committed to maintaining a structured approach with monthly discussions regarding basic 
photography knowledge, tools and techniques. Assignments will be allocated with 4 weeks to produce images 
pertaining to the assignments.  Monthly meetings will consist of viewing these images with some critiquing as 
well as the opportunity for questions and answers.  Each discussion will lead into the assignment for the next 
month. 
 
With the knowledge of photographic techniques comes the ability to process these images on computer 
software.  Each monthly meeting will now incorporate a short Lightroom presentation to further enhance the 
quality of images during post processing. 
  
Two field trips are being planned including a day out in Tutong with Jungle Dave.   
 
Equipment to be purchased is a monitor calibrator.  
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GOLF DIVISION 
 
 

POSITION NAME 

Golf Captain Hj Roslie Hj Bakar 

 
 
The Golf Division consists of: 
 

 Men’s Golf  
 Lady’s Golf  
 Driving Range  
 Golf Shop 

 
 
CAPTAIN’S REPORT 
 
My sincere thanks and gratitude to 2016/2017 Committee Members and PGC staffs for their valued support, 
contribution and dedication throughout the year.  
 
I would also like to extend my thanks and gratitude to all PGC members who have supported and participated 
in all competition specifically the Monthly Medal competitions, friendly Inter-club etc.  Congratulations to all 
winners in these competitions.  Another special thanks to all members, volunteers, reciprocal members and to 
those who has/have directly or indirectly contributed to all events organized by PGC in 2016. 
 
I would like to express my thanks to our Professional, Paul for his continuing excellent service to Members 
and visitors and enthusiastic golfers through his work contract with PGC. 
 
As of 2016 with no funding from the Club, PGC events and businesses was self-funding and hope that oil prices 
will improve in this very tight global economic situation.  To this end, the PGC Committee and myself has 
endeavor to work within the proposed budget for 2016 and have tried always to reduce the operating costs 
for PGC. 
 
HSSE especially personal safety remains a top priority for PGC committee and myself.  As mentioned last year, 
we seem to have more crocodiles in our ponds despite being caught in the traps, hence all members have 
remained vigilant during their golf rounds. 
 
Last but not the least, I would like again to thanks the outgoing PGC Committee Members for their valued 
support and dedication, thanks to all members for their continuous supports throughout the year.  I welcome 
any constructive comments for improvement and we look forward to work with all of you the coming years 
ahead. 
 
Best wishes and good golfing 2017-2018.   
 
 
HJ ROSLIE HJ BAKAR 
Captain 
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GOLF DIVISION (cont’d) 
 
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Golf (Men’s)  Golf Captain Hj Roslie Hj Bakar 

Golf (Men’s)  Honorary Secretary Raini Kassim 

Golf (Men’s)  Honorary Treasurer Hjh Norasmah Bolhasan 

Golf (Men’s)  Honorary Competition Secretary Roslan Hj Abd Rahman 

Golf (Men’s)  Honorary Handicap Secretary Rusli Sulaiman 

Golf (Men’s)  Honorary Groundsman Omar Hj Yusof 

Golf (Men’s)  House Member Muslim Moslam 

Golf (Men’s)  Friday Member Anuar Hj Ahmad 

Golf (Men’s)  Committee Member 1 Hj Mohammad Hj Dawok 

Golf (Men’s)  Lady Captain Bonarius Tracey 

Golf (Men’s)  Lady Member Linda Baya Malang 

Golf (Lady's) Lady Secretary WanaGapar 

Golf (Lady's) Lady Treasurer Gurung Michelle 

Golf (Lady's) Competition Secretary Lesle Leong 

Golf (Lady's) Lady Floating Member Mirin Quezada Boulanger 

Golf (Lady's) 9-Holes Ladies Committee Fennis Cornelia 

Golf (Men’s) Golf Pro Bryant Paul Anthony 
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HEALTH AND FITNESS DIVISION 
 
 
POSITION NAME 

Health & Fitness Member Corinna Laukens Alfrink 

 
 
The Health and Fitness Division consists of: 
 

  Art of Living (AOL) Section 
 Badminton Section 
 Basketball Section 
 Fitness Centre (Gym) Section 
 Netball Section 
 Tri-Fit Section 
 Yoga Section 

 
 
 
 
Art of Living (AOL) Section 

 
 

1. 2016 Activities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Programs 

1. Conducted 1 Happiness Program (HP) 
2. Conducted 1 Advanced Happiness Program (AHP) 
3. Conducted 3 Sri Sri Yoga  
4. Held weekly HP follow -up 
5. Held weekly Sri Sri Yoga follow-up 
6. Held weekly AOL Art Excel follow-up  

Events 
1. Yoga Session for Panaga School  
2. International Yoga Day 21st June 

Social Programs 
1. 2 Complementary wellbeing and relaxation sessions Nov 26th 2016- Pelangi Hall 
2. 2 Complementary wellbeing and relaxation sessions Nov 27th 2016 – Pelangi Hall 
3. 3 Complementary wellbeing and relaxation session Nov 26th -28th 2016 – G4/22 
4. Juice/Snack distribution for the workers from the course participants 
5. Old Age home/Orphanage visits and food distribution from course participants  

Section Development 

1. 1 New Sri Sri Yoga teacher certified in 2016 
2. 3 New Panaga Member  
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Art of Living (AOL) Section (cont’d) 
 
 

2. 2017 Plan Program 

 

 
 

2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Yap Choow Tun 

Secretary Anilkumar Sreedharan Nair 

Treasurer Han Shun Fei  

Teacher 
Gadamsetti Venkata Ravindra 
Rajput Mahesh Vijaysing 
Rajput Swati 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Programs Total number 

Plan 

Actual Conducted 

(up to 31st March 2017) 

1. Happiness Program (HP) 10 2 

2. Advanced Happiness Program (AHP) 2  

3. AOL Art Excel  4  

4. Sri Sri Yoga Course 1  

5. Held weekly HP follow -up   

6. Held weekly Sri Sri Yoga follow-up   

7. Held weekly AOL Art Excel follow-up    

Events   

1. Weekly complementary Desktop Yoga +  Weekly  

2. Yoga Session for Panaga School    

3. International Yoga Day 21st June   

Social Program   

1.  Beach Cleaning Campaign - planed in 2017   

2.  Yoga sessions for the diabetic people    

3.  Training for the smile campaign   

4.   Club premises cleaning during Advance course from 

participants  

  

5.  Breath Water Sound program for underprivileged workers 
(2017) 

  

6.  Donate for child education for under privilege children 'Gift 
a Smile' program 

  

Section Development   

1.  New Happiness Program teachers certified in 2017 4 2 

2.  New Panaga Member  10 2 
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Badminton Section 
 
 

2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Lai Ling Wei 

Treasurer Tan Moi Gek Jenny 

Morning Session Organizer 
Goodman Catherine 
De Heer Perla 

 
 
 

Basketball Section 
 
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Ahmad Saadi 

Treasurer Wong Nian Jen Alan 

 
 
 

Fitness Centre (Gym) Section 
 
 
The Fitness Centre continues to be an avenue for members to pursue their health and fitness orientated goals. 
The monthly Fitness Centre newsletter has undergone a facelift by delivering a better quality finish.  With 
monthly tips on exercise, nutrition as well as healthy recipes, members will have a useful resource to help 
them along.  
 
With discussions in the new year with regards to relocating the Fitness Centre, this would provide some 
exciting new changes for the gym.  In addition to this, with the ageing nature of some of the cardio machines 
we’ll be looking to replace these within the year.  Other miscellaneous equipment that has undergone wear 
and tear over the years will also be replaced.  
 
So keep active, healthy and look out for some new changes through the year!   
 
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Dam Lars 

Secretary Nobel Lee 

Treasurer Hj Rizal Hj Kassim 

General Member 
Elthon Leslie Hadfield 
Andrew Winder 
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Netball Section 
 
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Lynne Manderson 

Secretary Abby  Aubin 

Treasurer Susannah Margret Simon 

General Member  Rebecca Hill 

 
 
 
 

Tri Fit Section 
 
 
Chairman’s Report 
 
Firstly, I would like to thank all our committee menbers, volunteer instructors and contractors (Paul & Oliver 
and Alice Teo) 
 
The efforts of all of these people give all our valued members a variety of fitness classes and workshops. 
 
Our highlights for 2016 were the installation of the new mirrors in the small Multi-Purpose Hall, Aaron from 
Alice Teo providing Hybrid weights class on a Friday and Saturday mornings plus having FX Trainers deliver 
Weights Training certification for some of our members. 
 
We hope that our enthusiasm for the Section can carry on with the same vibrant passion into 2017/8. 
 
 
Elton Hadfield 
Chairperson 
Tri Fit Section 
 
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Elton Leslie Hadfield 

Secretary Audrey Campbell 

Treasurer / Webpage /Teacher Alfrink Corinna Laukens 

Teacher 
Terra Cardliff Kyfiuk 

Gemma Traveller 

General Member /Teacher Mitchell Laura Ruth 

General Member – Stock & Storage Christine Miriam Chase 

General Member 

Ollerton Fiona 
Cathy Savidan 
Wotton Julia 
Lee Li Eng 
Sharma Vandana 
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Yoga Section 
  
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Alfrink Corinna Laukens 

Secretary Schmidt Tina Grahman 

Treasurer Christine Miriam Chase 

Instructors Petra Gertrud Jenke 

Teacher 

Mendes Allison 
Kimberly Krebs 
Terra Cardiff Kyfiuk 
Szczepan Assel 
Buckley Katarzyna 
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KUALA BELAIT BOAT CLUB DIVISION (K.B.B.C.) 
 
 
POSITION NAME 

KBBC Commodore Anna Coyajee-van Rietschoten 

 
 
The Kuala Belait Boat Club Division (K.B.B.C.) consists of: 
 

 Dinghy Sailing Section 
 Kayak & Stand Up Paddle Board (SUP) Section 
 Power Boat & Fishing Section 
 Sub Aqua (Diving) Section 
 Windsurfing Section 
 Yachting Section 

 
 
KBBC Commodore’s Report for 2016 
 
Dear KBBC Members, Volunteers and Watersport Friends, 
 
I am very proud to be the Commodore of the KBBC Boat Club for more than 4 years as together we have been 
able to generate so much water sport fun. 
 
Hereby like to thank our KBBC board members Niels Dijksman, Heleen Koster, Tom Savels, and Evelien 
Klunder, our boatmen Zelani & Pg Aminnor and all the other active Panaga Club members who run all 
activities by contributing their (spare) time to the KBBC sections.  Many employees and their spouses express 
appreciation of high value to perform meaningful (voluntary) activities during their stay in Brunei for and 
within the community.  We were able to continue to run our sections activities and run some community 
activities (Open day at KBBC and a Family fun day at the beach).  We also continued with our collaboration 
with Outpost (newcomers boat rides).  A special mention is that in June we welcomed 17 sailing Yachts at 
KBBC that sailed their ‘Passage to the East’.  KBBC hosted a great evening with our guests!  The surf section 
also installed a wind meter at the beach that can be accessed online! 
 
Year 2016 was a year with relatively high turnover of committee members and said goodbye to Pg Aminnor, 
our second boatmen.  We have hired Zailan to support us in the New Year.  They are settling in well and a full 
calendar of activities is planned for 2017.  We are looking forward. 
 
Anna Coyajee, Commodore KBBC 
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KUALA BELAIT BOAT CLUB DIVISION (K.B.B.C.) (cont’d) 

 
 
KBBC Commodore’s Report for 2016 (cont’d) 

 
 

 
 
HSE 

 
In June we experienced an incident with a small powerboat hitting a log with a damaged engine as a result.  As 
this incident was logged in the BSP fountain system, we became part of an incident investigation lead by BSP 
SMR department.  We were asked to stop our boating operations by members only.  The boatmen still run 
fishing and powerboat activities but our powerboat bookings decreased as a result of the loss of this activity.  
We are open to implement useful suggestions and have made improvements accordingly.  Unfortunately 
currently the issue with a Class 9 licence is still running, as there seems to be conflicting information.  We are 
supported by BSP legal department and it hopeful will be settled soon.   
 
There is no progress on the long-standing need to rejuvenate the waterfront and jetty, after it has been 
delayed by BSP engineering departments for several years since 2012.  There are some additional preventive 
measures taken for safety. Signs for visitors have been put up:  Do not to board the jetty without life jacket. 
Furthermore the accesses to the jetty are fenced off with a chain and the floor above the fuel tank is painted 
with warning stripes to warn heavy vehicles.  Note: early 2017 AED will inspect the jetty. 
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KUALA BELAIT BOAT CLUB DIVISION (K.B.B.C.) (cont’d) 

 
 
KBBC Commodore’s Report for 2016 (cont’d) 

 
 
KBBC Clubhouse and Restaurant 

 
We also had our first full year with the new Caterer at KB Boat Club.  They successfully hosted kids’ parties, 
(section) events, some meetings and general recreational activities besides breakfast, lunch & dinner service.  
The Caterer would benefit from more regular customers and we are always trying to accomplish that.   
General feedback is positive. 
 
Boatmen 

 
During 2016, our two boatmen continued to provide full time coverage at KBBC and Panaga Club at weekends 
with off days on Monday and Tuesday.  The Hobie Section, Powerboat Section, Fishing Section and Dive 
Section saw a continued activity level in the weekends.  The boatmen split the tasks and managed time to 
accommodate each of the Section’s requirements.  However, with the increased workload, some events had to 
be cancelled as the boatmen can only be at one place at the time.  In November we said goodbye to Pg 
Aminnor, our second boatmen.  He is off to France to support his wife and family.  We did receive several 
applications for the vacant position and we were happy to hire Zailan as of January 1.  Great to have a second 
boatman on board as well with technical as well as social skills. 
 
During 2016, the boatmen continued to conduct half-day power boat training courses till summer and acted 
as skipper for many powerboat outings and fishing trips.  The courses had to be postponed from September as 
well as the members-driven boat outings, see information under HSE. 
 
Powerboat charters and offshore fishing trips continued its popularity with the boatmen working day and 
night to accommodate other KBBC sections (hobie etc).  Request so far for a 3rd boatman hasn’t materialized. 
 
Dinghy Sailing Section (including Hobies, Lasers & children’s sailing) 

 
2016 saw a significant change in the Hobie and Dinghy sailing committee.  The old committee stepped down 
and 4 new committee members took the role to progress the Dinghy Section. 
 
During 2016, the Dinghy sailing section ran a racing competition every first Saturday of the month during the 
period March-October 2016.  Parent & child sailing was continued on Saturday mornings from Panaga beach 
using Topaz. 
 
Further time was spent by the new committee on brainstorming and planning new activities, which will be 
introduced in the 2017 sailing season.  This was helped by the good response from the Panaga community on 
the online questionnaire with questions on desired sailing activities and frequency. 
 
In total over a 105 sails were made by unique sailors (and their children) by 30+ unique people. 
 
Cruising/Yachting Section 

 
In the beginning of 2016 a great year calendar is made.  Unfortunately the MA needs maintenance but 
experiences short of hands and committee members. 
 
We did receive the new EPIRB but needs to be registered in Bandar.  Since there is not much activity the new 
RIB stays on land (in the KBBC boathouse). 
 
Only in November a great team from the Garrison (John Langridge and Ryen Schofield, who are eager 
yachtsman) do repairs on the boat.  The keel is repaired and other small things. 
 
We also have outstanding practical part of the yachting course in Bandar, so that is a great aim to go for.  At 
the beginning of 2017 the yacht is ready to sail up to Bandar. 
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KUALA BELAIT BOAT CLUB DIVISION (K.B.B.C.) (cont’d) 
 
 
KBBC Commodore’s Report for 2016 (cont’d) 
 
 
Power Boat & Fishing Section  

 
The Section had a relatively good year with 69 executed charters with leisure Powerboat Nemo and Croc.  
Unfortunately during the summer break we had an incident with the Croc that resulted in an investigation 
followed by a temporary suspension for the use of the leisure powerboats on the river by members operating 
the powerboats themselves.  It was allowed to take out the powerboat under supervision of a boatmen and 
members, although limited, made use of this arrangement.  The temporary suspension impacted the section 
financially, as well, as welcoming new members to offer them the in-house Powerboat training course.  During 
the summer break the Nemo hull and interior was fully refurbished at Hj Rashid in Tutong. 
 
Fishing trips and Naga Laut river cruises under command of boatmen was not impacted by the temporary 
suspension and a total of 31 fishing trips were organised with good feedback from regular customers.  The 
weather was against use after the summer break and several trips had to be cancelled or re-scheduled.  The 
Naga Laut was hired 13 times, mainly for private parties during sunset. It is still in the plan to transform the 
Naga Laut into a slow moving leisure boat once sufficient funding is available to get this work done by Hj 
Rashid at Tutong. 
 
Detailed Charter update as in 2015 was not submitted this year. 
To ensure safety on the water, KBBC continued to provide ½ day leisure powerboat courses.  In total 5 
courses were hosted by the boatmen training 42 people in 2016. 
 
To ensure full communication coverage during the fishing trips a satellite phone was purchased to provide 
full coverage during emergencies. 
 
Two tool packages were purchased to assist the boatmen with regular maintenance tasks. 
 
One set for the KBBC and one set for the Hobie and sailing boats at Panaga beach.  Both tool packages are 
stored at boatmen office at KBBC. 
 
The Powerboat and Fishing Section continues to benefit from the web-based online booking system, which is 
planned to be continued. 
 
Maintenance on the leisure and fishing boat engines continues as per the OEM service maintenance 
recommendations.  Ad hoc service was required on instances with mainly fuel pump problems.  The RVS fuel 
tanks have been inspected and defects have been repaired. 
 
Refurbishment history of leisure and fishing boat: 
 
Croc powerboat hull and interior fully overhauled in February 2015 after its last overhaul in 2009. 
 
HH Fishing boat hull and interior fully overhauled in July 2015. 
 
Nemo powerboat hull and interior fully overhauled in July 2016. 
 
Minor maintenance on the Naga Laut was performed during the 2016 season.  The hull and interior was 
maintained to high standard but the hull is in need of a full refurbishment.  Plan is in place but it is waiting for 
sufficient self-funding the get the refurbishment/transformation done at Hj Rashid (At Hj Rashid in Tutong 
the same hull/boat as the Naga Laut is converted in an 15 seater, slow moving leisure boat, it is suggested to 
convert the Naga Laut in this type of boat as well). 
 
The underground RON 97 12 Ton fuel tank was cleaned early 2015.  Three 7000Ltr RON97 fuel loads were 
ordered throughout 2016. 
 
Overall the Powerboat and fishing section continued to be hugely popular in 2016 and is very appreciative of 
its support by KBBC Management and Panaga Club.  Although effort was required from the Powerboat and 
Fishing Section Management, the boatmen have continued their efforts and commitment to the Section. 
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KUALA BELAIT BOAT CLUB DIVISION (K.B.B.C.) (cont’d) 
 
 
KBBC Commodore’s Report for 2016 (cont’d) 
 
 
Panaga Divers 

 
Boat & Maintenance: 
 
The Naga Loncat dive boat after its dry docking in January for maintenance and repainting of the anti fouling 
ran smoothly until July where it develop an oil leak.  After servicing by the local vendor this created an oil and 
a diesel leak and the boat was then out of action for diving.  Parts took a number of months to be ordered and 
then we ordered directly from Miri.  The local vendor can to install them but could not restart the engine.  
Eventually a Volvo Penta technician from Singapore came over to start the engine but because all the 
appropriate parts had not been ordered another fuel leak was evident.  Finally in December more 
replacement parts arrived and were installed and the boat finally ran.  This was river tested and has now been 
successfully tested for diving in February.  So once the monsoon is over then regular diving from KBBC will 
commence.  As usual many man-hours have been spent by selected club members in cleaning the hull, 
regularly emptying the bilges, fixing issues and making minor repairs. 
 
For equipment maintenance: 3 tank valves were replaced, 1 XL BCD was written off as it came apart during a 
sports diver pool session, 2 BCD inflators were repaired.  Regulators were also rechecked and a number of 
hoses replaced and regulators tuned.  A couple of minor compressor issues were also corrected by direct 
ordering of parts and installing them ourselves. 
 
Diving: 

 
The Naga Loncat ran very well until July with 23 dive trips (more than in 2015 to July) were undertaken and 
~250 safe dives conducted, the peak diving month was May.  However, due to the issues with the Naga Loncat 
the number of dives in 2016 was cut short from the KBBC.  However this is did not stop us diving. Instead the 
club made 2 day trips to dive the wrecks off Muara and 15 dive days were spent exploring the Miri dive sites 
with the Piasau Divers.  We also made 2 dive trips with the Naga Laut, the first was a success but the second 
was made more challenging with engine problems on the return trip.  The dive season started 20th March and 
ended in Miri on 9th December. One night dive was thoroughly enjoyed by 8 divers and we have had 
numerous requests for more in 2017. 
 
The Club welcomed 24 new divers on top of the 18 regular divers. A few new reefs were discovered and have 
been named by the members including Ralf’s ridge, 247 reef and Rambling reef.  Members shared many of the 
photos from trips out to Chearnley shoals and from their further afield diving expeditions on the Panaga 
Facebook page. 
 
Training: 
 
Training still continued with lots of Sports diver training, 2 completed, 8 on-going, 1 dive leader virtually 
complete. 4 Nitrox courses were completed.  On the technical training 1 Accelerated Decompression 
procedures course and 2 Explorer mixed gas courses were completed.  We also assisted the Piasau divers in 
completing 4 ocean divers.  An advanced diver (Diving expedition leaders) course was kicked off for 3 divers: 
1 from Panaga, 1 from Piasau and 1 from the Garrison.  We also assisted Piasau divers to complete all 6 of 
their reef check surveys. 
 
Membership: we now have >260 Facebook page members, were we share highlights on the diving in Brunei 
as well as other trips around the world.  The dive email distribution list has ~140 members.  There were club 
trips to Anilao & the Maldives. 
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KUALA BELAIT BOAT CLUB DIVISION (K.B.B.C.) (cont’d) 
 
 
KBBC Commodore’s Report for 2016 (cont’d) 
 
 
Panaga Divers Finances 
 
The club ended 2016 in a strong financial position.  Income from diving and training was over 10,000 BND 
and expenditure on fuel and boat maintenance was just over 9,800 BND, leaving a club account balance of 
14,000 BND.  This is pending some expenditure to fix the boat from July to December.  We expect to spend a 
little more on restocking spares and supplies and we move into the new dive season and there is still a risk we 
may need to get the boat out of the water to repair the trim sensors, while still leaving a strong contingency 
fund in case of major engine surprises. 

 
Windsurfing Section  

 
The first quarter of 2016 started well for the Panaga windsurfing section (PWS) in terms of wind!  In 2016 
PWS have 4 paid members.  It is our belief that more people will join if we increase the number of windsurfing 
and related activities.  The plan is to conduct a windsurf course in June which will be continued on a yearly 
basis depending on the applications.  In 2016 the PWS has execute basic repairs on mast foots and extenders.  
PWS has installed a windmeter which generate realtime-online data, which can be viewed via the web-side 
Windguru. 
 
PWS has changed the practice of having keys at the reception as we have experienced that also non-members 
were using the equipment without paying for it.  Currently the members have a key of the lock, which will be 
renewed on a frequent basis to keep control of the key distribution in accordance with the paid membership 
list. 

 
Kayak & Stand Up Paddle Board (SUP) Section 

 
The following is a brief update on the Kayak Section: 
 
The paddle boards in the Kayak Section are starting to show their age.  Multiple repairs were required on 5 of 
the 6 stand up paddle boards and the pull trolley is damaged.  Plans are underway to use the money from the 
Section to purchase more robust paddleboards that are not as sensitive to wear or mistreatment and to 
purchase more family friendly toys such as children's surfboards.  The section has seen some attrition over 
the last year but still accommodates a group of about 30 families. 
 
Rowing Section 
 
The rowing section has not been active in 2015.  The plentiful presence of large crocodiles in Belait River 
prevents most people from venturing on the water in rowing boats. 

 
Events and Marketing 

 
The KBBC organized the following events in 2016: 
 

• KBBC Open family day at KBBC beach location (23 June) 
• Makers Market, KBBC restaurant 20 March, Egg hunt & boat rides. 
• Passage to the East, sail around Borneo, KBBC hosted 17 yachts for the night. 
• Collaboration between Outpost and KBBC to give newcomer spouses a great experience at KB river.  

Initiated in 2013, continues in 2014, 2015, 2-4 times a year and 2016 (2x, 25 April, 16 Sept) as new 
BSP employees went down. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



42 

KUALA BELAIT BOAT CLUB DIVISION (K.B.B.C.) (cont’d) 
 
 
KBBC Commodore’s Report for 2016 (cont’d) 
 
 
Finances 

 
OPEX 

 
It has been decided that, to be consistent with treatment of funding from Mauri and Serikandi, revenues from 
SNS will (continue to) flow to Panaga Club.  Panaga Club recognizes KBBC operations as a subset of the Panaga 
Club and therefore accepts the continued need to support the KBBC operations so will provide this funding as 
part of normal Opex and not as a liability.  Funding is estimated at BND 6k/year. 
 
Outstanding Loans 
 
Regarding outstanding loans: it has been decided to retain the related liability in our ledger so we do not lose 
sight of the expense having been incurred.  It is however recognized that KBBC and particularly Boat Club 
Section do not have adequate funding to repay the liability. 
 
Panaga Club agrees there is no expectation that all past loans will be re-paid. 
 
 
Committee Movements 

 
The following people stepped down in 2016:  
 
Mark van de Velden (Vice-Commodore and Chair Powerboat & Fishing Section), Tom Savels (Treasurer, 
earlier 2017), Nicole van Vught (Secretary and Hobie Chair), Jeroen Webers (Hobie Treasurer), Jeroen 
Blansjaar (Hobie Training), Hans Reichwein (Yachting) and Stine Rees (Kayak). 
 
We would like to personally thank all the past Committee Members for giving their time so freely.  The current 
KBBC committee members are shown in the following page table. 
 
Anna Coyajee-van Rietschoten, KBBC Commodore 
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KUALA BELAIT BOAT CLUB DIVISION (K.B.B.C.) (cont’d) 
 
 
Committee January 2017 
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PERFORMING ARTS DIVISION 
 
 
POSITION NAME 

Performing Arts Member Robert Harris 

 
 
Performing Arts Division consists of: 
 

 Jam Factory 
 M.S.P. –Music Society of Panaga 
 P.D.C. – Panaga Dance Centre 
 Social Dance Section 
 T.A.D.S. – The Amateur Dramatics Society. 

 
 
Performing Arts continues to be an active Section at the Panaga Club.   
 
Throughout the latter part of 2016 and early 2017, Performing Arts Sections have put on musical recitals, 
dance shows, and a pantomime as well as providing music and Dance lessons to a large part of the Panaga 
Club membership.  The Section continues to be active due to the passion and skills of the volunteer 
committees as well as the excellent professionals who have been employed to provide lessons. 
 
As Performing Arts Member, I would like to extend my gratitude to all outgoing and incoming Committee 
Members for their passion and support for their Sections since the last AGM’s and for their future efforts 
which will I am sure enable us to maintain an healthy level of training and events for the membership. 
 
The members present then debated the proposed membership fee changes, after which I was re-elected as the 
Performing Arts Chairperson. 
 
 
Rob Harris 
Performing Arts Member 
 
 
 
 

Jam Factory Section 
 
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Jelle Freerk Boels 

Treasurer Field Christopher Michael 

General Member Kellerman Slotemaker Arthur 
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Music Society of Panaga (M.S.P.) 
 
 
1. New Committee Members List 

 
Currently MSP has 3 committee members and 1 Choir Coordinator. 
 
Chairman :  Diewertje Fijnvandraat  

Treasurer  : Shanshan Zhou (Suzy) handed over to Hanneke Dolle in July 2016 

Choir Coordinator :  Hanneke Dolle from September 2016 

Recital coordinator :  Annie is currently supporting all Recital and student performance 

Secretary  : Hanneke has taken over this role and started in 2016 but a new secretary is 
needed. Probably Jumayda wants to take over this role in 2017. 

 
New posts for Lesson coordinator for Guitar and Drum students, an exam coordinator and Events 
Coordinators are needed.  
 
Lesson coordinator need to manage registration form and students/parents inquires, to liaise with the 
teachers and parents on schedule and teaching methods.  
 
Events coordinators will support in organizing local, international and students’ recitals.  
 
The Exam coordinator has to plan and organize the exams. Judy Lesle has taken this role for the 2017 
exams. 
 
We had a lesson coordinator for a short time. Willy Poos tried to do this, but she left Brunei very soon in 
July and had to stop her activities. 

 
2. Financial Report 

 
Despite the structural change on Billing Policy and increase of lesson Fees during the period of 2014 and 
2015, it is difficult for MSP to generate savings and funds for future section growth.  
 
The MSP income comes from two main sources: the commission (7.5% on Music society and 10% on 
Rhythmic arts) which is charged on outsourced lesson fees and the margin from in-house teacher’s 
lesson fees.  For 2016 this income decreased by 16% due to decrease in students resulting from a general 
decrease in Panaga Club members. 
 
In 2016, the committee did only invest some funds in the cleaning of the carpets in the music room and 
partly funding a professional performance. 
 
The 2016 budget mainly focused on building up funds for the replacement of the Grand Piano and the 
music room renovation.  The current Grand Piano is the Sections most valuable asset and was purchased 
in 1979 at a cost of $18,350.  The replacement cost is estimated to be in the region of $25-30,000.  The 
Section also has 3 other pianos which are used for music lessons (which generate the MSP income), the 
Section’s performance and recitals and the performances by Panaga Dance Centre and TADS.  The 
Section is considering to ask a rental fee for the pianos when used by any other sections. 
 
Music room Renovation aims to replace the wall paper with paint and building soundproofed walls and 
providing a better & healthy learning environment.  
 
Because the focus is on the above items, there is no room for expenditure on professional musical 
performances.  The MSP would like to offer at least 1 or 2 professional musical performances and 
therefore the 2017 budget has been amended to accommodate this (decreasing the section’s financial 
reserves).  Beyond 2017, it is hoped that Panaga Club can partly support the section in funding 
professional performances for the benefit of the Panaga community (as was the agreement before 2015). 
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Music Society of Panaga (M.S.P.) (cont’d) 
 

 
3. Music Lessons Report 

 
Music tuition is the main activity of the Music Society for the Panaga community.  In 2016 the M.S.P. 
continued music teaching at the Club with Annalee Moya as full-time piano teacher and Expressions 
music and Rhythmic Arts part-time teachers for piano, drum, guitar, violin and voice.  Ms. Mavi, from 
Rhythmic Arts, left in June last and was then replaced by Ms. Naressa Candelaria. 

 
Teacher No of Students* Lesson Day 

Annalee Moya - piano 60 – (30,45,60,75min lessons) Monday - Saturday 

Agnes V. Navarro - piano 36 – (30min lessons) Monday – Wednesday & 
Saturday 

Jun Centeno - drum & guitar 79 – (30, 45min lessons) Monday – Thursday & Saturday 

Chona David - violin 6– (30,45min lessons) Monday 

Rhea Helbolario - voice & piano 14 (30min lessons) Thursday 

Naressa Candelaria - piano 8 (30min lessons Saturday 

* If students take two different instrumental lessons they are counted twice. 

* Includes students who have left Brunei or discontinued lessons in 2016 

 
The status of the waiting list at end of 2016 - Piano – 5 
 
In 2016 the following activities took place: 

 Associated board of the Royal Schools of Music – September. 

 Trinity College of London – May and November (both practical and theory). 

 Rockschool, UK. 

 May Recital - all instruments 

 The same examinations will be done in 2017. Certificate day (presentation) will be in June or July, 

depending on the blackout dates and Hari Raya holidays.   

 
4. Activities In 2016 And Plans In 2017 

 
MSP successfully organized below activities in 2016: 
 
 February 2016 - Guitar and Drum Recital 

 March 2016-Piano recital  

 June 2016 – student recital 

 September 2016 – piano performance Catelijne Smit 

 September 2016 – performance Fidelio Trio from UK 

 Exams 

 December 2016- Sounds of the holidays - Christmas Concert - Music Students 

 December 2016- Choir - Winter Wonderland  

 December 2016- MSP Sang at the Festive Fair  
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Music Society of Panaga (M.S.P.) (cont’d) 
 

 
MSP plans the following activities in 2017: 

 
1) MUSIC RECITAL in March for guitar and drums and piano 

2) Piano certificate day in second half of 2017 

3) APRIL- 2 JUL 2017 is black-out date, no events are allowed during this period 

4) Music exam for students June/ July 

5) Review contact with Rhythmic arts in March 

6) Planning a performance with Pei Sien and Estevan Ellul 

7) Planning a performance with a Dutch piano duo.  

8) Hold a Broadway night KBBC dinner & performance.  Ticket price can be 35BND -40BND. According 

to past experience, there are around 80+ people attending this event. 

9) Participating in the Kota Kinabalu Music Festival.  Students will be sent to participate. 

 
 

2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Diewertje Fijnvandraat  

Treasurer Dolle Hanneke 
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Panaga Dance Centre (P.D.C.) 
 

 
Chairman’s Report 
 
PDC Committee for the year 2016 / 2017: 
 
Ballet Teacher  Patricia Rivera and Fritz Dereje 
Hip Hop Dance Teacher  Fritz Dereje and Rufo Maltu 
Chairperson  Angelica Turner 
Vice-Chairperson  Samantha Large 
Treasurer  Paula Klock 
Secretary  Germaine Bonney 
Registrar  Andrea Wehrendt 
Deputy Registrar/ Wait list  Claire Miller (Ballet); Patience Obi (Hip Hop) 
Dance Shop Manager  Marella Jansen (assisted by Laura Mitchell) 
General Members  Sarah Collicut, Angie Noto, Cathy Savidan, Annieshear Perera 
 
The 2017 Annual General Meeting was held on Thursday 9th March 9.00pm in the Pelangi Room where the 
Committee for 2017/18 was elected and Section Report (set out below) supported. 
 
PDC Committee for the year 2017 / 2018: 
 
Ballet Teacher  Fritz Dereje 
Hip Hop Dance Teacher  Rufo Maltu 
Chairperson  Ana Pereira 
Vice-Chairperson  Jennifer McNulty 
Treasurer  Paula Klock 
Secretary  VACANT 
Registrar  Andrea Wehrendt 
Deputy Registrar/ Wait list Claire Miller (Ballet); Patience Obi (Hip Hop) 
Dance Shop Manager  Marella Jansen 
General Members Sarah Collicut, Angie Noto, Tom Savels, Alison 
 
 
In 2016 - 2017 the following has been organized / realized / initiated: 
 
KEY HIGHLIGHTS: 
 
December 2016: Successful PDC Year End Ballet and Hip Hop Show with enthusiastic participation and 
attendance (4 shows in total). 
 
June 2016: Graduation private ceremony where PDC announced 100% pass rate (c.51 students in total) who 
were awarded with PDC certificates and later received their formal RAD Certificates. 
 
March 2016: RAD exams – PDC put 72 students forward for the Royal Academy of Dance examinations which 
were conducted smoothly and successfully including the arrangement of necessary immigration and travel 
logistics for the visiting RAD examiner. 
 
Contemporary Dance classes held for the first time in PDC history (early 2016). 
 
PDC supported its dance teachers in “Continuous Professional Development” (CPD) by sponsorship for 
attendance at training courses abroad (Kuala Lumpur). 
 
PDC supported the Panaga School in its’ Carnival and School Disco events where the Hip Hop Crew performed 
under the guidance and support of their teachers, Fritz and Rufo. 
 
PDC successfully passed the Ministry of Home Affairs (MOHA) screening for its year-end shows. 
 
PDC sponsored the upgrade of the Dance Studio over the Summer 2016 holiday, providing wall-to-wall 
mirrors on the side wall and curtains throughout (for examination purposes). 
 
PDC Dance Shop entirely restocked in Summery 2016, ethos remains “not for profit”. 
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Panaga Dance Centre (P.D.C.) (cont’d) 
 

 
 

We bid a sad farewell to Patricia, our esteemed and well-loved PDC ballet teacher for the past 6 years.  The 
PDC are grateful and wish to duly recognize her efforts, time and dedication in her tireless work on the 
education and passion of dance for the PDC. 
 
The PDC managed the transfer and transition of classes between new ballet and hip-hop teachers successfully 
and seamlessly with the huge effort of the new teachers themselves. 
 
The PDC Committee were personally acknowledged and thanked by Paula, PDC treasurer who opened her 
own home to the Committee and put on a lavish and generous Christmas meal to capture her gratitude and 
recognition for the Committee’s time and efforts. 
 
The PDC successfully started offering Tippy Toes classes to younger children, too young for Hip Hop and 
Ballet lessons.  Classes were quickly subscribed. 
 
Upcoming events, plans in and to be realized in 2017 
 

 Ballet Open House – in the Week of 6 March 2017 – hugely positive reception 

 Royal Academy of Dance Ballet Exams in May 2017. 

 July Ballet Graduation – Tentative dates will be in early July 2015. 

 End of year show – November/ December 2017. Number of performances to be confirmed 

 Dance/Ballet workshops during some of the Panaga School holidays 

 
Registrars’ Report 

 
Ballet 
2016 
Opened with 113 students 
Closed with 134 students 
At AGM – 135 students 

Hip Hop 
2016 
Opened with 116 students 
Closed with 109 students 
At AGM – 110 students 

 
 
 
 

Social Dance Section 
 
 

2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Lee Wai Chee 

Vice Chairperson Ho Mei Leng 

Secretary Kwong Beng Hock Francis 

Assistant Secretary Law Xiao Song 

Treasurer Hii King Yieng 

Assistant Treasurer Teresa Kong 
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The Amateur Dramatics Society (T.A.D.S.) 
 
 
Since the last AGM, TADS has pulled together a team of willing volunteers and had a very successful year 
which culminated in a production of the pantomime Cinderella which was expertly directed by Rosie Hawkins 
and ably supported by many members of the Panaga community.  The TADS wardrobe also continues to 
provide an invaluable service to the Panaga community for costume rental and has allowed TADS to generate 
revenue and pay for consumable costs such as the lighting computer UPS even when it was not possible to put 
on a large program of shows. 
 
Looking forward, there is a huge amount of energy within the community to deliver a full program of TADS 
events. Unfortunately, due to work commitments I will be stepping down as the TADS chairman this evening.  
I firmly believe that for TADS to be the successful section it deserves to be that someone with more time 
should be in the chairperson role.  I have really enjoyed my time as chairman and will continue to support 
TADS as a stage manager going forward. 
 
With that being said, i now would like to thank the outgoing committee (Belinda and Allison) for their great 
support this year and start the election process for the 2017 committee positions. 
 
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Harris Robert Duncan Andrew 

Secretary Mackellar Belinda 

Treasurer Jones Allison 
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SOCIAL DIVISION 
 
 
POSITION NAME 

Social Member Christina Sugila Samuel 

 
 
The Social Division consists of: 
 

 American Club Section 
 Bridge Section 
 Brunei Brits Club (B.B.C.) 
 Community Event Section 
 Dutch Community Section 
 Friends United Network (F.U.N.) Section 
 German of Panaga Society (G.P.S.) 
 Indian Community Section 
 Indonesian Community Section 
 Jungle Tots Section 
 Kiwi Club 
 Latino Community Section 
 Nigerian Community Section 
 1stPanagaCubScouts Section 
 Santa’s Grotto Section 
 Scottish Community Section 
 Youth Club Section 

 

 
 
American Club Section 
 
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Chad Alan Wittfeld  

Secretary Steven Marsden Brown  

Treasurer Bianca McBride  
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Bridge Section 
 
 
New Players:  

 This year has seen a decrease in players, more social event has to be planned to introduce Bridge to new 
players.  

 Our distribution list has a good number but many continue to be passive.  
 
Social Bridge:  

 Social bridge evenings proved to be very successful.  

 We also have planned social evenings and lunches for people leaving.  
  
Tournaments:  

 Leagues have tried to be introduced but are on hold for the meantime.  

 We did not participate in Shell World Wide. 

 Inter club bridge has been discussed but is currently on hold.  
 
Communication:  

 What’s App groups has been a successful means of communication.  

 In addition we use the Panaga newsletter, posters and the Panaga website to communicate.  

 Our distribution list is sent monthly emails after committee meetings.  
 
2017:  

 The future of the club, at the moment, is no longer at risk.  

 Continue to ask the players what they want from the club and try to facilitate this as far as possible.  

 New courses are planned.  
 
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Treasurer Karl Mikael Asplund  

General Member 
Chandrasekar Subramaniam  

Sara Asplund 
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Brunei Brits Club (B.B.C.) 
 
 
What a year 2016 was for the Brunei Brits – with sports, music, activities and socializing all featuring highly 
on what has turned out to be one of our most active years in recent history. 
 
The Brits started 2016 with a welcome back party hosted at Linda and Craig’s pad with a bouncy castle for the 
kids as well as halal sausages.  It was well attended and despite some issues with the bouncy castle, was 
enjoyed by all. 
 
March was active for both the children and the adults – we had the children’s Playback, graced by a judging 
panel of stars with Adele, Katy Perry and even Lady Gaga making an appearance.  
 
After a year’s break, The Great Race was back in full force. This year’s theme was the ever-great British Pop 
and saw 27 teams competing to be crowned champions by participating in a grown up treasure hunt over 
camp in fancy dress.  It took skill, style and stamina, as all of our participants demonstrated! 
 
The middle of the year saw the Brits go football crazy, with England, Wales, ROI and even Northern Ireland 
taking part in the Euros.  We saw the establishment of Chateau Pomme de Tierre, where football fans could 
find a fridge full of snacks and drinks and a TV with all the matches live, with a bit of a party for the big final. 
 
Back in school term in September, the Brits co-hosted a welcome back party with the Scots to promote the up-
coming Highland Games.  A massive congrats to all of the participants in the track and field events of the 
Games – after months of practices on the Padang, we managed to have a few in our squad managing to  bag 
medals. 
 
October saw the return of our annual Progressive Dinner – a fantastic event to meet people across camp and 
enjoy some delicious cuisine in a different home for every course. 
 
The other highlight of the year, besides the Great Race, has to be the Festival at 49. Going for something never 
attempted before in Panaga, we are so happy for all of the support that we received from the community. 
 
 In the afternoon sector of the festival, there were carnival games for families, as well as a showcase of local 
bands and choirs.  Vendors displayed their traditional handicrafts and food stalls kept everyone satisfied, with 
Mexican, Indian, Chinese, cakes and kebabs to name a few.  A troop of volunteers kept the day moving and to 
them we would like to a massive Thank You!  In the evening, the festival was for adults only, and we had 
music from local bands with the likes of pop and country, rock and soul followed by a DJ until the small hours. 
 
We could not have done all of these events without a dedicated team of volunteers mucking in, and to them, 
I’d like to say a phenomenal thank you for all of your effort, ideas, sweat, stress and fun – here’s to 2017!  
(thebruneibrits@gmail.com) 
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Jennifer Rebecca Scott  

Secretary Belinda Mackellar  

Treasurer  Justine Mercedes Bottoms  

General Member Matthew Dixon  

Committee 

Cristina Correa-House Chaudry 
Surendra Anusha Tamara 
Germaine S Bonney Field 
Christopher Boanas 
Twycross Leslie 
Van Nieuwkoop Elizabeth Mackie 
Mander Michael Geoffrey Anthony 
Veldman Bart 
Forbes Linda 
Mason Luke Phillip 
Maier Rachel Emily 
Spiers Brent 

mailto:thebruneibrits@gmail.com
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Community Event Section 
 
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Christina Sugila 

Treasurer Sandra Rietdijk 

 
 
 
 

Dutch Community Section 
 
 
Secretary’s Report 
 
The Secretary informed those present that there are currently 82 families member of the Dutch Committee 
compared to 95 last year.  The committee and subcommittees were discussed as well as their succession and 
thanked on behalf of all members for their time and effort in 2016. 
 
The Secretary provided a review of the organised events of the past year and thanked all who contributed to 
making these events a success.  Participation of many volunteers is essential to be able to sustain the level of 
activities in 2017. 
 
Activities during 2015-2016 
 
The events of 2016 included 1 visit by a Dutch artist, as well as the other traditional events:  Dutch Night, 
Kinderfeest (international events), Oranjeborrel, Vrijmarkt, Sinterklaas, St. Maarten celebration and evening 
marches in May.  In 2016 the Dutch committee was able to offer Dutch swimming lessons for the children. 11 
children succeeded to get their A-diploma, 11 to get their B-diploma and 7 their C-diploma.  
 
A detailed activity list is provided at the end of this report. 
 
Treasurer's Report 
 
The Treasurer discussed the financial report for 2017 and the proposed budget for 2017.  Both financial 
report and budget proposal were reviewed and agreed upon by the members present. 
 
Committee Members 
 
The events person has resigned per august 2016.  At the AGM held on the 18th of January 2017 the treasurer 
and the secretary resigned. 
 

 2016  2017 
Chairman: Machiel Hulsbergen  → Machiel Hulsbergen 
Treasurer: Rob Cornelissen → Wouter van Lunteren 
Secretary: Rianne van de Merwe  → Leonie Gerritsen 
Materials: Sander Suk  / Rob de Bree → Sander Suk  
Events: Linda Visser  → Sander Suk /  

Leonie Gerritsen (from September '16) 
Yearbook: Sander Suk → Sander Suk 

 

The Chairman thanked the members of the 2016 committee.  There were no further questions.  The new 
committee members were elected unopposed and were subsequently installed by the chairman.  
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Dutch Community Section (cont’d) 
 
 

Organised Activities for 2016 
 

 22 January : New Year’s Cocktail Party ‘Oranje borrel’ 

 3 March : AGM 

 24 April : Flea market (Vrijmarkt) 

 27 April : Children music workshop 

 29 April/1 May : Dutch Night and Kinderfeest  

 9-12 May : Evening marches for children 

 21 May : Panaga Nations Cup 

 17 & 18 June : Dutch artist doing a cooking show for kids 

 2 July : Family game, End of year bbq and Yearbook presentation 

 17 September : Welcome back cycle dinner (progressive dinner) 

 24 September : Highland Games 

 5 November : Quiz about the Netherlands 

 11 November : Sint Maarten 

 13 November : Arrival of Sinterklaas in Panaga 

 27 November : Home visits Sinterklaas 
 
Planned Activities for 2017 
 

 18 January : AGM 

 20 January : New Year’s Cocktail Party ‘Oranje borrel’ 

 22 February : Dutch Movie for kids 

 15 April : Golf Tournament (Klompentoernooi) 

 28/30 April : Dutch Night and Kinderfeest  

 7 May : Flea market (Vrijmarkt) 

 May : Evening marches for children 

 20 May : Panaga Nations Cup 

 June : Dutch Artist 

 June : Family event (Vlaggetjesdag) 

 8 July : Family game, End of year bbq and Yearbook presentation 

 September : Welcome back cycle dinner (progressive dinner) 

 11 November : Sint Maarten 

 November : Arrival of Sinterklaas in Panaga 

 November/December : Home visits Sinterklaas. 
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Friends United Network (F.U.N.) Section 
 

 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Vice Chairperson Tiwari Snehal 

Secretary Fatima Umar Shehu 

Treasurer Rubina Anis 

Publishing Coordinator Lee Li Eng 
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German of Panaga Society (G.P.S.) 
 
 

2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Oliver Swientek 

Secretary Jochen Naeth 

Treasurer Thomas Jenke 

General Members 

Petra Gertrud Jenke 
Daniela Swientek 
Ina Naeth 

 
Activities/Events 2016 
 

• Participation in Panaga Highland Games 
• Nature Explorer 
• German Carnival Celebration 
• Participate in Panaga School International Day 
• X-mas party 
• Meet & Greet for new German arrivals via outpost  

 
Planned Activities/Events 2017 
 

• Regular GPS get-togethers 
• Participation in Panaga Highland Games 
• Participation in Panaga Games 
• Cologne Carnival Celebration  
• Nature Explorer  
• Participate in Panaga School International Day  
• X-mas Party 
• Website support  
• Meet & Greet for new German Arrivals via Outpost  

 
Website 
 
The website is still active but not properly maintained in terms of members/events due to lack of technical 
knowledge. 
 
Financial 
 
The Germans of Panaga Society is very small (mainly due to oil industry downturn) and hence, relying on 
donations, financial status in not very wealthy.  However, we do seem to manage having the right amount we 
do need for our small events and to contributing as part of a wider European team in e.g. Panaga games. 
 
Committee 2017 
 

• Arthur Lubniewski- Chairperson 
• Dietmar Mueller- Secretary 
• Uwe Asmussen- Treasurer  
• VACANT positions are highlighted in the list above.  All Germans and German speaking people in 

Brunei are happily invited to volunteer. Furthermore everyone is asked to share his/her ideas about 
activities or events to extend the list above.  The willingness to become the contact person for this 
activity/event is considered. 
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Indian Community Section  
 
 
1. The 2016 AGM was held on 22nd March 2016.   

 
2. The following persons were elected by the attendees as authorised signatories for the section during the 

Annual General Meeting: 
 
 Vivek Sharma – Chairperson 
 Naveen Singhal – Secretary 
 Sesha Sitaram Talluri – Treasurer 

 
In addition, following committee members were appointed for various other roles : 
 
 Events – Tejus Mehta 
 Sports – Ganesh Subramanian 
 Information – Prtihviraj Rajaji / Samuel K Chelladurai 
 Public Relations – Renjit Gopalakrishnan 

 
3. The agreed objectives of the Section 

 
 Platform for Indian community members in Panaga Club to meet. 
 Celebrate Indian cultural activities with other communities. 
 Provide a platform for other communities to learn about India. 
 Participate as a community in cultural events organized by the Panaga Club. 

 
4. Members:  Around 66 Indian origin families are currently members of Indian Section of Panaga Indian 

Community. 
 
5. The following activities were conducted during 2015-2016 by the Section: 
 

 Organise - “Jungle Mein Mangal” on 29th May 2016 at the Panaga Jungle House 
 Organise - Bollywood Nite on 30th September 2016 @ 49 
 Accommodate, Resolve & Declash – NIAC Independence Day Celebration on 01st October 2016 
 Organise – Diwali Nite on 5th November 2016 @ Jungle House 
 Participate – Bankole Futsal Club on 3rd December 2016 @ Multi Purpose Hall 
 Donate – BND 500 to IAB for initiative to support Suraksha insurance for low wage workers, beach 

cleaning drives and blood donation camps 
 Participation - Various cultural events organized by other communities namely IAB and MA 
 Participation – Art of Living activities when held in Panaga Club Premises  
 Participation – Volunteering with Kids Event organised by Brunei Brits during Festival@49 on 12th 

November 2016 
 

6. Funding 
 
 No Monthly membership fees was charged. 
 Fund raising activities through Bollywood Nite and from MD’s Social fund. 

 
7. Visibility 

 
 Updated the Indian Members Email Contact list to reach out to 110 subscribers 
 Set up a Indian Section Panaga Facebook page to stay connected on social media 
 Regular updates via the Panaga Club Newsletter  
 Panaga Club Website Indian Section Homepage refreshed. 

 
8. Reports 

 
AGM was carried out on 22nd February 2017.  Annual report and financial report approved. 
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Indian Community Section (cont’d) 
 
 

2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Sharma Vivek 

Secretary Singhal Naveen Kumar 

Treasurer Talluri Sesha 

Cultural/Events Secretary Mehta Tejus Manharlal 

Information Secretary Rajaji Prithviraj 

Information Secretary Chelladurai Samuel Kirubaharan 

Public Relation Officer Gopalakrishnan Renjit Ambika 

Sports Secretary Subramanian Ganesh 

 

 
 
Indonesian Community Section  
 
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Dini Andriyani Millie 

Secretary Henny Stefani Deha Oentoro 

Treasurer Risma Ikawaty Buyung 
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Jungle Tots Section 
 
 
Mission 
 
The Aim of Jungle Tots (JT) is to provide a welcoming and fun play environment for parents and children (age 
0-5). The committee with the support of all members provides play sessions and parties throughout the year. 
 
Highlights of the Year 
 
This year Jungle Tots has held daily sessions throughout school term time, several sessions during school 
holidays, including a 7-week summer survival programme and hosted 4 parties. 
We currently have at the end of 2016, 84 families registered as members. 
 
Weekly Activities 
 
Wet and Wild 
Our Monday session is aimed at children over 6 months old, and offers a range of arts and water play 
activities. There is always a paddling pool with water, usually some form of bubbles alongside that, an art 
based activity, playdough and a sensory or messy play activity. This session is very much about children 
deciding what activity they would like to participate in with their parent/carer. This session is currently 
jointly run by Christina Sugila and Rachel McIvor who took over the session from Alison Eng earlier in the 
year. 
 
Family Play 
Our Tuesday session is now Family Play, this was moved from the Friday morning slot to accommodate a 
response for Bumps and Babies session to be moved. This is very much a free play session where children are 
able to play with a variety of toys. We usually alternate toys used from week to week so the children don’t get 
bored with one type of toy.  This session has proved to be our least popular, so is being replaced by Family 
Story and Fun time in January 2017 and will be run by Jennifer McNulty. 
 
Jungle Jingle 
Wednesdays session is all about singing, and is aimed at all ages. This session is a led session, where parents 
and children get to sing nursery rhymes and action songs and use basic percussion instruments. This is one of 
our most popular sessions. Jungle Jingle is currently run by Gemma Hunt who took over the session from 
Nikki Jackson earlier in the year. 
 
Jungle Tumble 
Jungle Tumble is our Thursday session and is aimed at children who are mobile, predominantly those aged 
over 8 months.  This is a popular session where children can practice their physical motor skills such as 
climbing, jumping and throwing. The purchase of a bouncy castle for this session has been a great addition to 
the other soft play items we already have. This session is now run solely by Ed Graham after Jenn O’Connell 
left over the summer. Ed will continue to run the session until early 2017 when he will take a break until later 
in the year due to his 3rd child being born. 
 
Arts and Craft and Messy Play 
Our Thursday afternoon session is designed with older children in mind, usually aged 2 and above. We 
alternate weeks with either and arts and craft activity or an outside messy play and water session. This 
session was being run by Nikki Jackson and Susannah Simon, but the session was cancelled in June 2016 after 
very poor attendance. There is currently no session in its place. 
 
Bumps and Babies 
Our Bumps and Babies session is aimed at pregnant mums and those with children aged up to 18 months. This 
session was moved to our Friday slot in September after consulting parents as it was felt it fitted in better for 
those pregnant mums who worked and had Fridays off.  This session was run by Erin Gossanyi and was taken 
over by Nikki Jackson in September who felt her midwifery experience would benefit those parents who were 
attending the group. The session is very much a relaxed session where parents/parents to be can chat about 
concerns, share parenting ideas and get pregnancy and new-born advice.  
 
Dutch Music and Singing 
One Saturday a month, Marion Sivarajah runs a Dutch sing along session aimed at children aged 2 to 5.  This 
session will not run in 2017 as Marion has stepped down and no one has come forward to run this session. 
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Jungle Tots Section (cont’d) 
 
 
Parties 
During 2016 we held 4 parties, Easter, Summer, Halloween and Christmas. All our parties were well attended 
and well enjoyed.  Committee members and helping hands organise arts and craft activities, sensory activities 
and face painting, at our Halloween party we also hired a magician.  Each child received an iced cookie at all 
our parties this year, and at the Christmas party they also received a book off Santa. We have had a bouncer at 
all of our parties,  with the Easter and Summer party having a water slide.  One point coming out of parties 
was the need for strict parental supervision on the bouncers, for parties in 2017 we will make signs to go 
around the area to reiterate the need for supervision being a parental responsibility and not a jungle tots one.  
This year at our summer party we had an ice cream van for the first time, which was a great addition and 
something we will consider next year. Parties are our biggest expense during the year. 
 
Summer Survival 
This year’s summer survival ran from 19th July until 2nd September, this year we had 39 families sign up to 
hold activities over 41 sessions.  To allow your child to participate in the summer survival programme, a 
parent had to host a session at some point over the 7 weeks.  Initial interest was slow, but by July we had 
activities on most days, during the summer we had several families sign up to host activities so their children 
could join in. Most of the sessions were held in the jungle house, but we did have a few sessions take place 
elsewhere. Popular sessions were the fire station visit, reptile man, beach craft session and jungle tumble. 
During the summer, we welcomed several new to Brunei members who were able to access the summer 
survival programme without signing up to host, this has proven a great way to get new families involved with 
jungle tots and allow them to meet families already here. This year’s summer survival was co-ordinated by 
Nikki Jackson. 
 
Equipment Hire 
 
Jungle Tots currently have 13 Tables & 76 Chairs which are available for hire.  Charges are $25 per hirefor 
Jungle Tots members and $33 for non-Jungle Tots members.  Payment is by chit.  Hire forms can be obtained 
at the club office. Forms must be submitted at least 2 weeks before the actual hire for requests to be 
approved. 
 
Communication to Members 
 
Information is commuted to Jungle Tots members by email, newsletter, Jungle Tots information board outside 
the Jungle House and Jungle Tots Facebook page.  The Facebook page is a closed group for Jungle Tots 
members only.  While emails are still vital as the main communication tool, the Facebook page is very handy 
for session leaders to inform members about changes to a session under short notice.  This year we set up a 
Facebook page specifically for Summer Survival so programme updates and changes to sessions could be 
communicated there with ease, emails were also sent for those who did not have Facebook access. 
 
Toy Cleaning and Inventory  
 
This year’s toy inventory took place in April following toy cleaning. During this inventory, we removed several 
broken toys in the outside area and the inside toy cupboard.  During this time, we were also able to take a 
note of any new purchases we needed.  
Toy cleaning was carried out in May and November at a cost of $760.20 by outside cleaners. 
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Jungle Tots Section (cont’d) 
 
 
Maintenance and Improvements 
 
The leaking roof was fixed on the Jungle House veranda, but there have been additional leaks during the year 
which have been dealt with by the club.  There was also an issue with broken railing around the veranda 
which was also fixed. 
 
During the year, we found the air conditioning unit in the Let’s Pretend Room had been leaking quite 
significantly and water had spread into the toilet area. This was fixed during a general air conditioning 
maintenance session, but jungle tots session leaders decided we should make a point of checking the room at 
least once a month as it rarely gets used.  Check list to be put on whiteboard in toy cupboard to ensure checks 
get done. 
 
The biggest maintenance issue this year was involving the Wooden castle in the playground, on several 
occasions it had been reported that sections of it were unstable and were taped off, the castle was removed in 
September.  After talks with the Panaga Club, a tender was put out to find a new play structure, this is still 
ongoing, we have been able to give our input on design, but we are still waiting to hear which structure is 
being installed and when. 
 
We have purchased a few new items this year, including a new playhouse, a bouncy castle for Jungle tumble 
and various other toys. Our total yearly expense for equipment this year was $3460.24. 
 
Committee Members 2016 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson 
Alison Eng (until Nov 2016) 

Nicola Jackson (from Dec 2016) 

Treasurer Edward Graham 

Secretary Christina Sugila 

General Members &  

Helping Hands 

Hanim Ghaffur 

Susannah Simon 

Gemma Hunt 

Rachel McIvor 

Jenn O’Connell 

Erin Gossanyi 

Jennifer McNulty 

Marion Sivarajah 

Kathryn Deuerlein 

 
Closing Notes 
 
This year’s Jungle Tots has provided a well varied programme to our members, even without using our 
afternoon slots, we offer enough sessions that appeal to the variety of age groups we are open to. 
 
Hopefully our change in sessions in 2017 will enable us to gain new members and importantly new 
committee members and helping hands. 
 
Thank you to all our volunteers for their time and hard work in providing sessions and parties, without you 
we would not be able to offer the programme we do. 
 
 
Nicola Jackson 
Chairperson Panaga Jungle Tots 
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Kiwi Club Section 
 
 
Chairperson’s Report 
 
The Kiwi Club Section was established in 2015 and has 6 family memberships who contribute monthly to the 
section.   
 
The Kiwi Club Section participates in the Highland Games each year with our ladies’ team winning top ladies 
team overall and the Clan Kiwi team winning second overall. 
 
The Kiwi Club Section has held four events, two spit roasts, one ANZAC Day service gathering at the Beach 
Shelter, and one combined activity with Oz Sports. 
 
Our Secretary Malcolm Faulkner is leaving Brunei and resigned as Secretary. 
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Munro Agus William Alasdair 

Secretary Falkner Malcolm John 

Treasurer  Anderson Craig John 

General Member Rebecca Hill 

General Member Mcivor Rachel 

Gerneral Member Anderson Elizabeth Caroline 

 
 
 

Latino Community Section  
 
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairman Olmedillo Eduardo Jose 

Secretary Nieto Carlos Eduardo Camacho 

Treasurer Alejandra Guerrero  

Events Coordinator Lorelay Sanchez  
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Nigerian Community Section 
 

 

Adeshina Sadiq presented the 2016 annual report. He gave an account of the stewardship of the outgoing 
EXCO.   
 
In 2016, the executive continued the legacy of promoting an environment where every member shares and 
cares for one another.  Promoting healthy lifestyle, cultural values and warm hospitality by organizing and 
participating in social and sporting events within Panaga and Bandar.   
 
Key events were the Six Nations Panaga and Highland games, Panaga school International day, NIAC and the 
Bankole cup.   
 
The community lost Ngozi Duru, 4 children were born in the year and 11 families left Brunei on other 
assignments.   
 
Passport renewals were organized during the NIAC by inviting the embassy officials from the Nigerian High 
Commission in Malaysia.   
 
The Chairman enjoined the incoming EXCO to follow up on discussions that have been initiated with the 
Panaga Club to take on the full sponsorship of the BankoleCup.  The request for the community events 
sponsorship by BSP has been submitted for 2017 and the outgoing chairman asked the incoming EXCO to 
follow up on it. 
 
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Shehu Garba 

Secretary Sarah Olayemi 

Treasurer Maisara Hammawa 

Activity Coordinator Oluseye Ogunsina 

Sports Secretary Kamson Bolaji 

Ex-Officio -1 Tammy Biambo 

Ex-Officio -2 Vacant 

 

 



65 

1st PanagaCubScouts Section 
 

 

 A variety of badges, investitures, visits, and a camp were undertaken during 2016. 

 As at 1st February 2016 Cubs has 18 boys in three sixes, and 10 leaders. 

 An investiture to welcome 6 new boys into Cubs was undertaken in February. 

 In September 2016 Cubs was expanded to 32 places and Girls were invited to attend for the first time in 

Panaga Cubs Scouts history, with three girls invested in September 2016. 

 21 badges undertaken during 2016. 

 A camp using the four new tents was completed in April 2016 at the British Army Commanders 

residence at W3 and was a complete success.  

 Two investitures were completed, one in February and one in September. 

 Special thanks to the 10 Leaders for their time and efforts to making Cubs a success in 2016. 

 

2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Munro Angus William Alasdair 

Treasurer Goodman Paul Antony 

Boy Scout Leaders 
Secretary/Assistant Scoutmaster 

Hii King Yieng 

Cub Scout Leader – Meeting Leader Simon Brown 

Cub Scouts Leader/Meeting Leader Goonoo Arnold 
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Santa’s Grotto Section 
 

 

Santa’s Grotto 2016 was very successful.  Thanks to the generosity of Andrew and Liz we were able to 
accommodate 200 kids to come through the grotto at 49, over 4 hours in 2 separate sessions.  The gifts 
(advent calendar) were lovely and very popular with the kids as well as the adults... many asking if they could 
buy others for gifts themselves.  Kids had a great time whilst waiting for their turn with Santa, entertaining 
themselves with the very successful arts and craft corner, tattoos, face painting, story time, magician and the 
several singing groups (military wives choir, panaga choir, Severine and the panaga school choir) that were 
able to give some of their valuable time to make our even more special. 
 
 Special thanks to the Garrison for supplying the tents, tables, chairs, fans and man power to install and take 
away for our outside comfort. Without them (both the items and their help) it would be a rather hot and 
sticky day outside for all.  
 
Thanks to Siv and the lovely Norse community for their time and yummy Christmas treats- waffles!! 
 
The merchandise this year was just as popular- the tshirts, hats, swim bags, reindeer food, snow globes 
(leftover) and a few other bits had pretty much all sold out before the second session.  
 
The ginger bread men were also a huge hit this year (also nearly selling out in the first session!) we had to put 
some away to ensure we had enough for the second session.  
 
We had so many elves this year it was great to see the community come together to help the event be 
successful. Everyone seemed to have a great time! 
 
Going into 2017, there is going to be a change of leadership at the head with people moving on and some 
stepping away to let some new blood take over, not without a full hand over though! 
 
We are going into 2017 with a strong account balance which will be put to good use getting some new and 
much needed new decorations and supplies.   Ticket prices will stay the same ($25) and with lots of new faces 
around at the end of the year we are going to push our numbers up slightly to 225 to see santa. 
 
 

2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Rebecca Hill 

Secretary Sweeney Alana 

Treasurer Harris Mandy Joy 

Chief Elves 
Thomas Kerman 

Forbes Linda 
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Scottish Community Section 
 
 
Summary 
 
It has been my absolute pleasure to be part of this vibrant section and I am proud of the successful events we 
have hosted since the last AGM.  Again KBSC organised key events open to all members of Panaga and our 
main event, the Panaga Highland Games, which is open to all in Brunei. 
 
A new addition in 2016 was the monthly ‘Out to Lunch’ initiative.  Bringing Panaga people together in a 
different restaurant around Kuala Belait once a month to inspire communication and boost the local economy.  
As well as organising our own events, the KBSC continues to distribute news to the whole community via its 
mailing list, and is inclusive of all communities within Panaga. 
 
It was another great year with unfathomably valuable participation from all committee members.  All events 
were well planned, well run and well attended.  A huge thanks to the Committee and the other volunteers who 
make sure that these events are executed to a very high standard time and again. 
 
2016 Events 
 
Out to Lunch 
 
Initiative started in March 2016 as a way to bring the communities together and explore some new eateries 
around town. The monthly lunches have been popular and with everyone paying their own account numbers 
needn’t be restricted. 
 
Welcome Back combined with our friends at the BBC 
 
On September 10th we hosted a joint ‘Welcome Back’ sausage sizzle with the Brunei Brits.  This served to 
welcome the community back from the summer break and welcome new members. 
 
Casual Ceilidhs (Social Scottish Dances) 
 
Thanks to our resident Casual Ceilidh Band, we continued to host small ceilidhs (dances) in 2016, the first 
being held on May 14th, where the people of Panaga can enjoy Scottish music and traditional Scottish dancing.  
This serves as great practice for the bigger events of Burns Night and St. Andrew’s. 
 
The Panaga Highland Games 
 
The Silver Jubilee 25th Panaga Highland Games was again a triumph for KBSC and all those involved. 
 
The Games had to be delayed until September 24th in 2016, in compliance with blackout period regulations 
and school holidays. The event was held over two days with the 5k run on Friday 23rd on the Panaga beach 
and a full day on 24th September at the Panaga Padang. This showcase annual event brought together 
multiple groups from within the BSJVs & the local community to: 
 

1.  Participate in adult & children’s sporting activities. 
2.  Share in Scottish cultural experiences. 
3.  Promote local businesses & charities in the community. 
4.  Promote local community relations within BSJVs. 

 
Congratulations to the 2016 winners: Pan Bright Travellers. 
 
One of the biggest sporting events in the country, this event is open to all residents of Brunei with no fee for 
spectators (c.3000 in previous years). 
 
Competitors come from all regions of the Sultanate.  2016 saw 10 teams and over 100 individuals participate 
in the Games. Congratulations to all who participated. 
 
Additionally, there were separate children’s events with over 100 participants. 
 
The 3rd Battalion Royal Brunei Land Forces put on a fabulous display of Scottish Pipe Band music.  We had 
our own Panaga resident’s Casual Ceilidh Band playing Scottish Music throughout the day as well as a Scottish 
Country Dancing display from the Panaga School children. 
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Scottish Community Section (cont’d) 
 
 
This is a massive event and requires coordination within BSP, Panaga Club and the Garrison together with 
outside parties and various nationwide vendors.  As such, it relies on a band of dedicated volunteers who put 
in months of preparation and planning to make it the successful event that it is. 
 
St Andrews Ball 
 
Following 2015s disappointing cancellation due to the Marriott’s continuing renovations we made a 
concerted effort to find another suitable venue for the occasion.  The committee visited several hotels in Miri 
to no avail. Most were too expensive or required a large deposit months in advance which we couldn’t 
provide. 
 
We decided to downscale the event in 2016 and instead of a black tie ball, host a St. Andrew’s Casual Ceilidh at 
a committee member’s home in Panaga on November 26th.  We still had 80+ attendees. 
 
Burns Supper 
 
Held on Saturday 22nd January 2017, again in conjunction with the Garrison on their grounds.  110 people 
attended the evening to celebrate the life and works of Scotland’s National Poet, Robert Burns.  It was a 
traditional format of speeches and poetry and the evening was finished off with a ceilidh (dance).  This 
evening cemented good relations with the new Garrison Sergeant Major and friends. 
 
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Lynne Haddow Grattan 

Secretary Mennie Lesley 

Treasurer Grattan Gerald 

General Member McDonald Alistair Charles 

Shadow Chieftain Forbes Craig Charles 

Shadow Treasurer Sweeney Garry 

 
 
 
Youth Club Section 
 
 
2016 Committee: 
 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Henny Stefani Deha Oentoro 

Secretary / Team Lead Tan Siak Yee 

Treasurer Tubb Adam 

Team Lead Collicutt Sarah 
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SPORTS DIVISION 
 
 
POSITION NAME 

Sports Member Ramana Rao 

 
 

The Sports Division consists of: 
 

 Athletics Section (PANAS) 
 Cricket Section 
 Cycling Section 
 Football – Dutch Sub-Section 
 Football – Fun Sub-Section 
 Football Academy Section 
 Football Academy – Tots Sub-Secion 
 Hockey Section 
 Lawn Bowls Section 
 Rugby Section 
 Stingrays Swim Section 
 Tennis Section 
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Athletics (PANAS) Section 
 

 
Dan Joinson, PANAS Chairperson 
 
Panas is an informal running club. We meet twice a week on Monday and Friday evenings (1745 @ the beach 
shelter) to run around Panaga.  Once a month we organise a race (called the TT though we still don’t 
remember whether TT stands for: time trial or tourist trophy) which is in or near Panaga and kindly hosted 
by Panas runners.  In 2016 we had at least 50 club member entrants and probably 100 more from Brunei and 
beyond who entered the half marathon and triathlons.  We run a points-based championship every 6 months 
and give awards for best improver.  We also tried out an age appropriate championship in the 2nd half of the 
year which proved popular – see below.  
 
Once a year we organise a half marathon in Panaga, which was held in the evening this year.  We also 
organised two formal triathlons with sprint and super sprint distances based on a mass-start sea swim.  Our 
runners and triathletes compete around the region: road races, triathlons, trail runs.  We would recommend 
people search out some more interesting places to run than endlessly stomping around Panaga!  
 
Over 2016 more than 8 of our regulars left Brunei and we are keen to get new people to come in to the section 
– you don’t have a commute anymore so why not come running? 
 
If you would like to join our mailing list, please contact us at panas.panaga@gmail.com 
 
Upcoming events:  
 
Panaga Triathlon – 7th May – search for panaga triathlon on facebook 
 
AGM minutes 
 

1) Prize presentation  
2) Money – we have some which we will try to spend on something 
3) Elections – Kevin Klock stepped up as numerator. Emily Harbottle was elected chair in absentia 

although it is not 100% clear if she will accept. No one volunteered to take on the Triathlon although 
a few people offered to help with smaller roles 

4) AOB – don’t think so. 
 
The Team 2016  
 
Dan Joinson – Chair, Claire Mueller > Martijn Hulshof – Treasury, Bachir Mabrouki – Secretary, Mike Quirk 
(again) – Numerator, Triathlon – Nicola And Roy Marden, Fabrice Petrissans. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:panas.panaga@gmail.com
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Athletics (PANAS) Section (cont’d) 
 

 
Results from the year 
 
Half Marathon and 10km – which was on a hot Friday evening rather than a cool morning and you can really 
see how heat affects people’s times! The 10km over-shadowed the half this year a little but we gave people the 
choice.
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Athletics (PANAS) Section (cont’d) 
 

 
The Half Marathon side-show 10km (which had many more people this year) 
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Athletics (PANAS) Section (cont’d) 
 

 
And a few ‘others’ 

 
 
 
January to June 2016 – Wei Kuang and Celine come out on top – both with almost perfect scores. 
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Athletics (PANAS) Section (cont’d) 
 

 
July to December 2016 – Fabian and Liz Triumph! Mike’s last great Panaga gasp – he ran every race and 
controlled the points but still only got 2nd…. 
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Athletics (PANAS) Section (cont’d) 
 

 
July to December 2016 – age appropriate championship. We correct people’s times for their age by comparing 
it to the WR for someone with the same age – we had a points championship and also a ranking of who was 
the most Olympic – Peter Watson came out on top at 68.2% of an Olympian which is pretty good I think, 
Andrew Faulkner won the championship and the ‘Help the Aged’ cup. It is quite a nice system as it corrects for 
gender which means one championship and one cup which is cheaper. If only we could measure our distances 
a bit better…. 
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Cricket Section 
 
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Suryadevara Venkata Ramana Rao 

Treasurer Pudi Venkat Gopalakrishna 

 

 
 
Cycling Section 
 
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Jason Kaile s/o Smith Amanda Sara 

Secretary Van Oortmerssen Simon Gijsbert 

Treasurer Brown Steve Marsden 
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Football Section 
 
 
Dutch Football 
 
o Play every Thursday nights at 7.30pm – 9.30pm. 

o All levels are welcomed. 

o Number of players currently in the mailing list:  35 players however some 18 players are active. 

o Friendly game is organized once per week against local visiting and/or other BSJV teams.  There is no 

competition/prizes. 

o Fixed local referee is arranged weekly and he is paid 15 BND compensation. 

o Drinks are organized by one of the players and together with the referee costs these is a collection of BND 

50 amongst the players on as-needed basis.  This is arranged and controlled by the Dutch Football 

Secretary. 

o No funding required for the Sub Section from Panaga Club. 

 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Martijn de Heer 

 
 
Fun Football 
 
o Play every Tuesday nights at 7.45pm – 9.30pm. 

o All levels are welcomed. 

o Split players into two teams, typically 5-a-side or 7-a-side depending on the number of players turn up on 

that night. 

o No hard tackles and hard shooting allowed. 

o Playing for fun and once in a while organized a friendly game against other football clubs. 

o Number of players currently in the mailing list:  17 players. 

o The game is played without any competition or prize and the drinks during and after the games are self-

provided.  No additional fund required for the Section. 

 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Saiful Bakri 
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Football Academy Section 
 
 
Chairperson’s Report 
 
Garry and Evgenii began by informing the committee on how happy they and Richard were with the Panaga 
Club Football Academy Section and all of the fantastic support from all of the coaches. 
 
Other highlights were that again the following has improved the Panaga Club Football Academy: 

 Matches on Saturday’s has been a success as it provides additional excitement within the section and has 

improved the section overall 

 Dedicated coaches for Dedicated Teams have also made an improvement as it has allowed the coaches to 

spend quality time with the team and enabled better coaching of the children 

 Monday night advanced session appreciated from those involved 

 Lots of new coaches for both Tuesday and Wednesday which is good 

 Football Strips were well appreciated and improve the overall look of the academy – the new Names 

numbers and logos were highlighted. 

 
Overall it has been a very successful year in which all of the children have improved and the numbers of teams 
and coaches have also grown. 
 
Well done and let’s make 2017 an even better year. 
 
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Richard Eng 

Secretary Garry Sweeney  

Treasurer Evgenii Chulkov  

Coach – Development League,P1-P2 Arthur Lubniewski  

Coach – Minor League P3-P4 Maximiliano Wehrendt  

Head Coach Yerbol Seifullin  

General Member 
Andrew Winder 

Craig Forbes  
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Hockey Section 
 
 
1. HSE 

 
Main HSE points of attention include: 

 
 There were no reported HSE incidents in 2016. 

 Hockey training was cancelled when the pitch was too wet after very heavy rainfall during the 
monsoon season. 

 Hockey training for the Hammerheads (P4-6) was cancelled in February when the school was also 
closed to avoid spreading of the Hand-Foot-and-Mouth disease. 

 
2. Finances 
 

The Hockey Section has reduced its balance over 2016 to BND 17705 an increase of about BND 750.  We 
have somewhat underspent our budgeted expenditures in 2016.  Main expenditure as on floor hockey 
equipment, shirts for Kids Hockey Players, a year-end Farewell Event, and some other materials (balls, 
cones,…).  For 2017 the intention is to invest in new wheels and nets for our goals. 

 
3. Adult Hockey 
 

In 2016, the Panaga Adult Hockey Section met most of Tuesday night for casual training with 6 – 8 players 
on a regular basis.  The Adult Section has been much in flux throughout 2016 with many members leaving 
but also quite a number of new members joining.  Towards the end of 2016 we have managed to grow our 
pool of regular hockey players to 8-10 which means we now regularly have 8 players or more playing.  On 
25 January 2017 we played a match against the Brunei National Women’s Hockey team in the Bandar 
Stadium.  It was a great experience to play them on water-based astroturf. 

 
4. Kids Hockey 
 

Kids Hockey remains the most striving branch of the Hockey Section.  However the group reduced from 
80 to about 20 kids playing every Thursday evening from 5pm.  Securing coaches for Kids Hockey has 
been a challenge throughout 2016 due to people leaving Brunei and coaches’ children no longer playing 
hockey.  However a new group of pre-nursery and nursery kids is a success adding about 8 enthusiastic 
kids to the pitch every Thursday.  We have enjoyed a great year-end farewell event and handed out new 
Panaga Kids Hockey shirts to all kids players. 

 
5. Floor Hockey 
 

The Panaga Floor Hockey Section is playing on Wednesday evenings in the Multi-Purpose Hall.  Typical 
attendance at the games is now 4 – 6 players.  The Floor Hockey Section will be trying to attract new 
players.  Promotion via the Panaga Club newsletter and publishing board at the Club will hopefully help.  
This year some new purchases (sticks and balls predominantly) were made. 

 
6. Committee Election - Roles 
 

The Panaga Hockey Committee for 2016 
 

POSITION NAME 2016 NAME 2017 

Chairperson Jeroen Blansjaar Michiel Willemse 

Secretary Vacant Marieke Willemse-Wirtz 

Treasurer Jamie Mitchell Jamie Mitchell 

Kids Hockey Secretary Manon Blansjaar Marieke Willemse-Wirtz 
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Lawn Bowls Section 
 
 
President’s Report 
  
Lawn Bowls at Panaga continues to grow in popularity as it is a game for all age groups and sporting abilities. 
  
The Lawn Bowls Section are grateful for the many years of care and upkeep the greens have received, 
providing a great afternoon out by the South China Sea.  The recent excellent work of rebuilding the fence and 
the high level of expert maintenance on the greens a highlight. 
  
The Lawn Bowls Section was proud to host many members of the Wisdom Bowls Club recently, featuring 
prospective Commonwealth Games participants, led by Abdul Rahim Mohd Taib (Secretary).  
 
An inaugural lawn bowls competition to be organized for April 30th at Panaga NL to liaise with wisdom 
 
We are keen to encourage more members.  Currently, we charge an extra $10 per month or $2 per visit on a 
social pass.  
 
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Neil Timothy Lynch 

Secretary Paulus Cornelis Deelen 

Treasurer Elton Leslie Hadfield 

 
 
 

  



81 

Rugby Section 
 
 
Chairperson’s Report 
 
The past year has been one of sustained participation for the Panaga rugby section with children rugby having 
some 120+ participants regularly on Friday evenings.  We have had significant new numbers of children, 
especially in the mini’s section, over the past 2 years and a number of new coaches.  The adult touch continues 
to be a success and Cathy will provide her report on this shortly.  
 
All children’s groups being, Mini’s (3-5yrs), Crocs (5-7 yrs), Early Tacklers (7-9yrs), and Juniors (9-13yrs) are 
flourishing with parents, children and coaches a like enjoying Friday rugby.   
 
We continue to advertised on BFBS radio and with the new RGR changing out in Brunei in the next month we 
have the opportunity to reestablish a strong relationship with British Army with many of the children and 
coaches British Army. 
 
I would like to take this opportunity to thank Andrew Mackellar (Treasurer), and Elton Hadfield (Secretary) 
for their dedication to the Rugby Section.   It is a pleasure to work with you both for such a great section. 
 
A great deal of thanks needs to be expressed for the hard work of the all the Coaches and volunteers over the 
past year, whether coaching, running the merchandise, helping set up each week, I thank you, without you we 
would not be able to have a successful rugby section.   
 
I am particularly delighted to see the girls progressing through the age groups with nearly half of the early 
tacklers being girls. 
 
A challenge for us is the need for more coaches in the Crocs age group as we currently have Carolyn Stennard, 
Angus & Garry Sweeney as the only regular coaches and we need at least 3 additional to allow for Garry 
departing in June 2017, and to cover Carolyn and Angus when unavailable. 
 
The finances of the Rugby Section are healthy as a result of increased members and our Treasurer will 
complete his report next. 
 
Adult Touch 
 
The participation of rugby section members has increased in Adult touch during 2016/17.   
 
We have successfully completed our first Adult mixed competition, where we played 4 weeks of round robin 
games followed by finals on Monday evenings.  There were 48 members who played in the competition and 
this small tournament format encouraged a lot more parents and coaches from the rugby section to have a go 
at touch.   
 
The women’s league was run again in 2016 and had 6 teams competing from around the country.  The Panaga 
Club was represented by the Kuala Belait Scorpions, who finished by winning the plate final.   
 
Adult touch continues to be a valuable part of the rugby section with some of the older girls moving into touch 
when they have decided not to continue with the contact rugby on a Friday night. 
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Rugby Section (cont’d) 
 
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Munro Angus William Alasdair 

Secretary Elton Leslie Hadfield 

Treasurer Mackellar Andrew 

Head Coach /Adult Touch/Adult Woman’s Rugby  Munro Angus William Alasdair 

Adult Woman's Rugby Helen Waters Clarke 

Merchandising Hadfield Catherine 

Sales Coordinator Rebecca Hill 

General Members 

Sweeney Garry 

Miller Andrew Simon 

Edward Graham 

Phipps Stephen Paul 

Marshall Joanne 

Marshall Thomas George Stuart 

Stennard Carolyn Virginia 
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Stingrays Swim Section 
 
 
2016 Committee: 
 

POSITION NAME 

Chairperson Mohamed Aly Mohamed Eid 

Co-Chairperson Rebecca Hill 

Secretary / Register Harris Mandy Joy 

Co- Treasurer Gurung Michelle 

Treasurer /Social Media Panaga Webpage Geraldine Smith 

Assistant Coach Salmah Karim 

Competition Squad Alide Wiersema 

Dutch Swim Lesson FP Gerritsen Sijmen 

Equipment Manager Alessandro Loi 

Head Swim Coach/School Swimming Liaison Gianfranco Saphone 

Swim Shop 1 Marion Judaline Rego 

Swim Shop 2 Hood Beverley 
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Tennis Section 
 
 
Thank You from the 2016 Committee!! 
 

POSITION NAME 

Captain Maximiliano Wehrendt 

Treasurer Marloes Janssen 

Secretary Dan Smith 

Maintenance Convenor Schalk Fourie 

Communications / Tournament Committee Anna Luiza Berredo 

League Convenor Bradon Schmidt 

Lesson Coordinator Judy Lesley 

Junior Development Program Convenor 
Arthur Kellermann 

Stephanie Straatman 

Tournament Committee 

Mohand Talanan 

Merel Kleuver 

Lily Seifullina 

Head Coach Domingo S Feliciano 

Coach Edward R Lariosa 

Junior Development Program Coach Nic Danuel A Fernandez 

 
Tennis Section Principles 
 
1. Welcome all members, aiming for a member population representative of Panaga Club 

2. Optimize court use by aiming for a total number of members between 600 to 700 

3. Continue to focus the lessons on beginners (youth, adults) to help them enjoy playing tennis 

4. Extra focus on developing young talent, aiming to put them on par with talent in other regions through 

the Junior Development Program 

5. Maintain contact with other Bruneian/Malaysian Clubs at the current level (2 exchanges per year) 

6. Maintain the standard of our facilities and continue to look for incremental improvements. 

 
2016 Club Highlights 
 
1.  Membership numbers dropping in 2017 
 

 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Single 81 97 83 92 79 

Double 62 64 79 77 62 

Family 126 133 127 110 97 
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Tennis Section (cont’d) 
 
 
2.  Junior Development Program (JDP) for high potential Juniors commenced. 

 Several tournaments played in Malaysia 
 Hosted inter club days with clubs from Brunei and Miri. 

 
3. Group Coaching 

 Juniors 
 Ladies 
 Mens 

 
4.  Individual lessons for all levels of play. 

 
Lessons 
 
1. Junior Tennis Lesson 

 Junior group lesson takers 167 
 JDP (Junior Development Program) 16 + 17 

 
2. Adult Lessons 

 Domingo 53 
 Edward 54 
 Nic 39 
 

3. Waiting List 
 Juniors 20 
 Adults 14 

 
Tournament - 2016 
 
 Tournament Committee:  Volunteers of Section members and Club’s coaches. 
 Tournaments:  Between 60-80 players taking part in Senior Tournaments and over 100 in Junior 

Tournaments. 
 Most tournaments are “Open” events and Panaga Club members are joined by players from BSRC, Bandar 

and Miri. 
 There is always an atmosphere of fun, competitiveness and friendly sportsmanship. 
 Adult Tournaments: 

 Men’s & Ladies Doubles – January 2016 
 Men’s & Ladies Singles – April 2016 
 Mixed Doubles – June 2016 
 Adult Team Tennis – October 2016. 

 
“Thank you” to all players for participating and ensuring the continued vitality of the Panaga Tennis Club. 
 
Junior Development Program 
 
 Commenced March 2016 

 Junior Development Program 
 Number of players 

 Main group: 16 players 
 Training pool: 17 players 

 
 Training schedule 

 Main group: 8 hours a week 
 3-5pm from Tuesday-Sunday and 8-10am Saturday and Sunday 

 
 Training pool 

 4 or 6 hours a week 

 4-6pm from Monday-Saturday and 8-10am Saturday 
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Tennis Section (cont’d) 
 

 February 25, 2017 Tri-Meet Panaga-Miri-Bandar 
 26 players from Panaga 
 10 players from Miri 
 9 players from Bandar 

 
 December 9-11, 2016 Kuching Greensports Age Group Tournament 

 3 players 
 1 champion trophy 
 1 runner-up trophy 
 3 semi finals trophy 

 
 November 12, 2016 Dual meet Panaga-Miri 

 24 matches won for Panaga 
 17 matches won for Miri 

 
 October 28-November, 2016 Panaga Junior Tournament 

 1 champion trophy 
 1 runner-up trophy 
 2 semi final trophy 

 
 Upcoming Tournament / Activities 

 March 3-11 Panaga Junior by Age 
 May 5-7 Panaga Junior Team Tennis 
 July 1 Junior Friendly 
 October 27-31 Panaga Junior by Ability 
 November 18 Junior Friendly 
 TBA Tournament outside Panaga/Brunei. 

 
Main Financial Topics 2017 
 
 Resurfacing of Courts 4 and 5 is scheduled in summer and funding is ensured – plan to spend $75k BND of 

Section funds 

 JPD:  Section will finance the coaches expenses during tournaments outside Panaga with review after 1 

year 

 Tournament Budget is based on break-even level 

 Proposal of the Panaga Club to include Tennis in the general membership. 
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Tennis Section (cont’d) 
 
 
2016 Senior Tennis League 
 

 

 

Any Other Business 
 
 Tournaments: 

 Good participation from BSRC personnel 
 

 JDP: 
 Discussion on JDP tournaments, participation, coaches involvement and subsidizing their travel 
 JDP Committee to review set up of JDP groups and request feedback from parents 
 

 Leagues: 
 Male winner – Dan Smith 
 Female winner – Diewertje van der Hart 
 Leagues 1-6 fairly active, 7-8 few matches played 
 

 General: 
 Proposal to approach local schools to encourage participation in Tennis. 
 

 

 


